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& Associates Tel.: +91 124 281 9000

Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Daawat Foods Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the standalone financial statements of Daawat Foods Limited (“the Company”}, which
comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2020, Statement of Profit and Loss, Statement of Changes
in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013(“the
Act’} in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 as amended / Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 as amended and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2020, profit, changes
in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India {(ICAl) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilted our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics, We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter
We draw attention to the following matter in the Notes to the standalone financial statements:

{a) Note 6(b} of the standalone financial statements which describes the uncertainties related to the
legal outcome of ongoing litigation related to the recoverability of Insurance claim (asset)
amounting to Rs. 13,410.53 lacs as at March 31, 2020. The Insurance Agency repudiated the
insurance claim vide its order dated February 4, 2016 against which the Company had filed a civil
suit with District Court of Raisen, Bhopal, the outcome of which is pending.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
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Other information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the Director’s Report but does not include the standalone financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon. The Director's Report has not been made available to us.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we will
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Financial
Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards
specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statement that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standatone financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements,

We give in “Annexure A" a detailed description of Auditor's responsibilities for Audit of the Standalone
Financial Statements.
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Other Matters

(i) The Ind AS standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31t March, 2019,
were audited by another auditor whose report dated May 14, 2019 expressed an unmodified opinion
on those financial statements,

(ii) Due to the restrictions and lock down laid by the government due to the COVID-19 pandemic, it was
impracticable for us to observe the physical inventory verification of inventory done by the
management as at the year end. We have performed related alternative audit procedures and have
obtained sufficient and appropriate audit evidence over the existence of inventory including review
of work done and report issued in this regard by independent firm of Chartered Accountants
{amounting to Rs. 35,659.05 Lakhs as on March 31, 2020).

Our opinion is not modified in respect of matters mentioned above.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies {Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11} of section 143 of the Act, we give in “Annexure
B” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent
applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a} We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit,

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

{c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of Changes in Equity and
the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

(d} In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements compty with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2020
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March,
2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure C”,

(8) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its standalone financial statements - Refer Note 39 to the financial
statements; s
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ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

3. Asrequired by The Companies {Amendment) Act, 2017, in our opinion, according to information,
explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors is within the limits
laid prescribed under Section 197 of the Act and the rules thereunder.

For MSKA & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration No. 105047W

ot 2

Rahut Aggarwal

Partner

Membership No. 505676
UDIN: 2050567 6AAAAAU4T7 37

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 27, 2020
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON EVEN DATE ON THE STANDALONE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF DAAWAT FOODS LIMITED

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* [dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of
such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasconableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,

related safeguards.

For MSKA & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 105047wW

ot 5

Rahul Aggarwal

Partner

Membership No. 505676
UDIN: 20505676AAAAAU4737

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 27, 2020
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ANNEXURE B TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF DAAWAT FOODS LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

i
{a} The Company has maintained proper records showing futl particulars including quantitative details
and situation of fixed assets (Property, Plant and Equipment).

(b} All the fixed assets {Property, Plant and Equipment) have not been physically verified by the
management during the year but there is a regular programme of verification of such assets in
phased manner which, in cur opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and
the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

{c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the
Company.

fi.  The inventory has been physically verified during the year by the management. In our opinion, the
frequency of verification is reasonable, No material discrepancies were noticed on verification
between the physical stock and the book records.

ifi. The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to Companies, Firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships (LLP) or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’). Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3 (iii) (a) to (c)
of the Order are not applicable to the Company. :

iv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act, in respect of loans, investments,
guarantees and security made.

v. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act
and the rules framed there under.

vi.  The provisions of sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act are not applicable to the Company as the
Central Government of India has not specified the maintenance of cost records for any of the
products of the Company. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3 (vi) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

vit.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is generally regutar in depositing undisputed statutory
dues in respect of goods and service tax, though there has been a slight delay in a few cases, and is
regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state

MU
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{b) insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, cess
and other statutory dues, as apptlicable, with the appropriate authorities.

{c) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, service tax, sales-tax, duty of
custom, duty of excise, value added tax, goods and service tax, cess and other statutory dues
were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable.

(d) According to the information and explanation given to us and examination of records of the
Company, the outstanding dues of income-tax, goods and service tax, customs duty, cess and any
other statutory dues on account of any dispute, are as follows:

Name of the | Nature of | Amount Period to which Forum where dispute is
statute dues (Rs. in Lacs) | the amount pending
relates
Income Tax Income tax 0.16 AY 2017-18 CIT {Appeals)
Act, 1961 demands
Income Tax Income tax 0.12 AY 2019-20 CIT {Appeals)
Act, 1961 demands
viii, In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not

defaulted in repayment of dues to the financial institution, bank or debenture holders.

ix.  The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) and term loans during the year. Accordingly, the provisions stated in
paragraph 3 (ix) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

X, During the course of our audit, examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out
in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of material
fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees.

xi,  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has paid for managerial remuneration in accordance with
the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

Xii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a
Nidhi Company. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3{xii) of the Order are not
appticable to the Company.
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xiii. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177
and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the
financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

xiv.  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, the
provisions stated in paragraph 3 (xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xv.  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or
persons connected with him. Accordingly, provisions stated in paragraph 3(xv} of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.,

xvi, In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45 IA of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934 and accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph clause 3 (xvi) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

For MSKA & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 105047W

o 232

Rahul Aggarwal

Partner

Membership No: 505676
UDIN: 20505676AAAAAU4737

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 27, 2020
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ANNEXURE C TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE STANDALONE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF DAAWAT FOODS LIMITED

[Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the
Independent Auditors’ Report]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Daawat Foods
Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (ICAI} {the “Guidance Note”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Act,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143{10) of the
Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the internal financial controis
with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

Y e
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Financial Statements

A Company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
standalone financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A Company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes those
policies and procedures that {1} pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management
and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Standalone Financial
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, internal financial controls with reference to
standalone financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to standalone
financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2020, based on the internal contro! with
reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note.

For MSKA & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 105047W

(\rn r%
Rahul Aggarwal

Partner

Membership No. 505676
UDIN: 20505676 AAAAAU4T737

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 27, 2020
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DAAWAT FOODS LIMITED
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020
(ALl amounts are in T lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Notes As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 2 (i) 10,498.11 9,162,538
Capital work-in-progress 2 (i) 152,19 1,510,67
Other intangibles assets 3 4.00 4.34
Financial assets
Investments 4 162,2% 306,20
Loans 5 239.85 328,70
Other financial assets 6 13,488.07 13,631.68
Deferred tax assets {net) 7 306.01 151,29
Cther non-current assets 8 55.36 219.73
Income tax assets (net) 9 333,48 257.33
Total hon-current assets . 25,239.36 25,672.52
Current assets
Inventories 10 35,659,05 42,348.06
Financial assets
Trade recefvables 11 12,879.92 7,236.18
Cash and cash equivalents 12 54,11 211.35
Other bank balances 13 460,68 137.87
Loans 14 70.5¢ 29.67
Other financial assets 15 23.48 349.45
Other current assets 16 6,759.84 5,859.17
Total current assets 55,907.58 56,171.75
Total assets 81,146.94 81,744.27
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 17 1,915.53 1,915,53
Other equity
Equity component of preference share capital 18 A 524,63 -
Other equity 18 B 24,720.87 20,427,80
Total equity 27,160,43 22,343.32"
Nonh-current liabflities
Financial lHabitities
Borrowings 19 1,513.68 3,332.52
Provisions 20 173.74 124,02
Other nen-current liabilities 21 6,276.20 7,505.68
Total non-current liabilities 7,963.64 10,962,22
Current liabilities
Financial liabillties
Borrowings 22 29,085.89 36,083.70
Trade payables 23
Due to micro and strall enterprises 124,23 60.06
Due to others 7,375.07 6,572.86
Other financiat Uabilities 24 1,358,67 1,007.94
Qther current liabilitles 25 7,702.15 3,943.29
Provisions 26 30.33 27.38
Current tax liabilities {net) 27 346.583 743.49
Tetal current labitities 46,022.87 48,438.72
Total labilities 53,986.51 59,400.94
Total equity and liabilities 81,146,94 81,744.27
Statement of significant accounting poticies 1

The accompanying summary of significant accounting poticies and other explanatory notes are an integrat part of the financial statements,

This is the Balance Sheet referred £ in our report of even date.

For MSKA & Assoclates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number:- 105047W

pos P A

Rahul Aggarwal ’ ﬁ
Partner

tMembership No.: 505676

Parmod Kumar
Director
DIN: 02475571

- F

Rajinder Wadhawan

Place ; Gurugram Chief Finangial Cfficer

Date : May 7], 2620

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
f Daawat Foods Limited

—

Surinder Kumar Arora

Managing Director

DIN: 01574728 7

T
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A ‘ausm&aﬁ

Company Secretary

Membership No.: A18354
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DAAWAT FOODS LIMITED
Statement of Profit and Loss for the vear ended March 31, 2020
(Al amounts are in ¥ lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Notes Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Revenue
Revenue from operations 28 98,837.74 84,921.84
Qther ircome 29 1,184.88 578.57
Total income 100,022.62 85,500.41
Expenses
Cost. of material consumed 30 70,089.09 61,514.,00
Purchases of stock-in-trade 31 10,455.63 6,254.77
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock in trade 32 (3,100.65) (917.61)
Employee benefits expense 33 2,017.85 1,780.11
Finance costs 34 4,545.16 3,792.36
Depreciation and amortisation expense 35 1,511.68 1,458.47
- Other expenses 36 7,407.19 6,134.60
Total expenses 92,925.95 80,016.70
Profit before tax 7,096.67 5,483.71
Tax expense 37
Current tax 1,059.03 1,979.78
Deferred tax (credit)/ expense (59.37} (41.28)
Total tax expense 1,999.66 1,938.50
Profit for the year 5,097.01 3,545.21
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Re-measurement of defined benefit liability (33.68) (20.13)
Tax on above 12.14 6,97
Items that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
(Loss}/Gains on cash flow hedges (1,095.73) 384.14
Tax on above 313.33 {134.23)
Other comprehensive income/ (loss) for the year (803,94} 236,75
Total comprehensive income for the year 4,293,07 3,781.96
Earning per equity share 38
- Basic and dituted 26.61 18.5%
Statement of significant accounting policies 1

The accompanying summary of significant accounting poticies and other explanatory notes are an integral part of the financial statements,
This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date.

For MSKA & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants of Daawat Foods Limited

Firm Registration Number:- 105047W " ’
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Partner Director Managing Director
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Chief Finkncial Officer Company Secretary
Date : May 7}, 2020 Membership No.: A18354

Place ; Gurugram
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DAAWAT FOODS LIMITED
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2020
{(All amounts are in ¥ {akhs unless otherwise stated)

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Prefit before tax 7,096,67 5,483.1
Adjustments for;

Depreciation and amaertisation expense 1,511.68 1,458.47
Unrealised foreign exchange (gain)/loss (50.5%) 14,18
Fair vaiue impact of investment (39.68) -
Provision for capital advance and other advances 224,12 75.84
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment {11.66) (11.32)
Proviston for diminution in the value of investment 221.0% 2.55
Interest expense 4,545.16 3,792.36
Interest income (53.73 (49.32)

Operating profit before working capital changes 13,443.10 10,766,47
Changes in;
(Increase)/Decrease in trade and other receivables (5,591.90) 1,315.36
(Increase)/Decrease in inventories 6,689.01 {42,801.18)
Decrease in other financial assets 325.97 152.58
{Increase)/ Decrease In other current assets (906.75) 1,458.50
Decrease in other non -current assets - 5.61
Pecrease in loans (176.10) (38.36)
Increase in trade payables and other liabilities 2,132.72 4,970.62
Increase in provisions 19,01 44,13
Cash generated from operations ' 15,941.06 5,873,13
Income tax paid (net) (2,302.02) (1,965.03)
Net cash from operating activities (A) 13,639.04 3,908.10
CASH FLOWS FROM INYESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment inctuding intangible assets, capital work in progress and
capital advances (1,34%1.01) (1,441,15)
Purchase of non-current investments {37.46) -
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 28,67 40.20
Loan to subsidiary - (100.00)
Investment in fixed deposits (179.20) 122.36
Interest received 53.73 49,32
Net cash used in Investing activities (B} (1,475.27) {1,329.27)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of preference share capitai . 2,000.00
Repayment of long-term borrowings (1,294.81) (3,591.02)
Proceeds from/ (Repayment} of short term borrowings (net) (7,000.30) 2,576.02
Interest paid (4,025,90) (3,924,95)
Net cash used in financing activities (C) {12,321.01) {2,939.95)
Net {decrease)/ Increase In cash and cash egulvalents (A+B+C) (157.24) (361.12)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginring of the year 211.35 572.47
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 54,11 211,35
Components of cash and cash equivalents (refer note 12)
Cash on hand 32,32 30.04
Balances with banks
- on current account 21.79 181.31
Total cash and cash equivalents 54,11 211,35

The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date.

For MSKA & Assoclates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants of Daawat Fopds Limited

Firm Registration Number;- 105047W - ﬁq{ﬁ/
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DAAWAT FOODS LIMITED

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2020
(Al amounts are in T lakhs unless otherwise stated)

A. Equity Share Capital

Particulars Amount

Balance at April 01, 72018 1,915.53
Changes during the year -
Balance at March 31, 2019 1,915.53
Changes during the year -
Balance at March 31, 2020 1,915.53

B. Other Equity

Reserve and surplus

Particulars Retained General reserve Cash flow hedge Se.!curities Total
earnings reserve premium reserve
Balance as at April 01, 2018 14,696.66 223.68 . 1,725.51 16,645.85
Profit for the year 3,545.21 - - 3,545.21
Items of OCI for the year :- '
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations (net of taxes) {13.16} - - (13.16)
Gains on cash flow hedges {net of taxes) . - 249,91 - 249.91
Total comprehensive income for the year 3,532.04 - 249.91 - 3,781.95
Balance as at March 21, 2019 18,228.70 223.68 249.91 1,725.51 20,427.80
Balance as at April 01, 2019 18,228.70 223.68 249.91 1,725.51 20,427.80
Profit for the year 5,097.0% - - - 5,097.01
Items of OCI for the year ;-
Remeasurement of defined benefit obtigations {net of taxes) {21.54} - - (21.54)
Gains on cash fiow hedges (net of taxes) - - (782.40) - {782.40)
Total comprehensive income for the year 5,075.47 - (782.40) - 4,293.07
Balance as at March 31, 2020 23,304.17 223.68 (532.49) 1,725.51 24,720.87

This {s the Statement of changes in equity referred to in our report of even date.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

of Daawat Foods Limited
For MSKA & Associates

Chartered Accountants o
Firm Registration Number:- 105047%
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Daawat Foods Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies for the year ended March 31, 2020

L

iy Corporate Tnformation

S—r

Dazwat Foods Tinuted (the ‘Company” 1s a public Company domaled 10 India and mcorporated
under the provisions of the erstwhile Compantes Act, 1956 Irs registered office 1s as Unit No. 134,
First Floor, Rectangle - 1, Saket District Centre, New Delhn - 110017, India, It 15 partly owned
subsidiary of 11" Foods Limired. Daawatr Foods Limited 2 pramarily i the business of oulling,
processing, and marketing of branded and non-branded basmau ree and manufactuting of vee food
products in the domestic and overseas market and integrated business of handling, storage and
transportation of food grains.

Basis of preparation

a) The fnancial satements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indan
Accounting Standards {Ind AS) notified under the Companics (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015 and the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) (Amendiment) Rules, 2016,

The financial statements have Been prepared on a historical cost basis, except:

¢ Cerain financial assets and Habilities which have been measured at fair value {refer accounting,
policy regarding financial mstruments)

b} Current versus non-curreni classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current
classification. An asset is {reated as current when it 1s:

o Iixpected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in nosmal eperating cyele®

¢ Held primanly for the purpose of tradiag

»  Hxpected to be realised within twelve months after the reposting pettod, or

¢ Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for af
least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability {s current when:

¢ lt1s expected to be settled in normal operating cycle®,

o Itis held primarly for the purpose of trading,

» Iris due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

¢ There is no unconditional right to defer the settlemient of the bability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as norn-current.
Deferred tax assets and Habilities are classified as non-current assets and labilities,
*Based on the nature of products and the time between acquisition of assets for processing and their

realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cyele as 12 months
for the purpose of cusrent or non-current classificaiion of assers and liabslities.




Daawat Foods Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies for the year ended March 31, 2020

¢) The Company has applied the below standard for the fizst time Tor ther annual seporting period
commencing Aprit 1, 201

e Ind AS 116, Leases (sefer pomt no (iv)g below),

The standard listed above did not have any significant impact an the amounts recognised in the
curtent period and are nor expected ro significantly affect the fuwre periods,

iii) Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial starements m conformity with Ind AS requires management to make
estimates, judgments and assumprions. These estiimates, judgments and sssumpuions affect the
application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilites, the disclosures
ol contingent assets and liabilites at the date of the financial starements and reported amonnts of
revenues and expenses during the pertod. Accounting estimates could change from period o period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates. Approprate changes in estimates are made as
management becomes aware of changes in circumstances sutrounding the estimates. Changes in
estimates are reflected in the financial statements in the period i which changes are made and, 1f
material, their effects are disclosed in the nates to the financial statcments,

iv) Significant Accounting Policies

a) Inventory

Inventories are valued as follows:

Raw materials, stores and spares and packing materials

Raw materials, components, stores and spares are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
of raw materals, compaonents and stores and spares Is determuined on a ‘Tirst in Fist Out® basis and
includes interest on raw materials as a carrying cost of matedals where such materials are stored for a
substantial period of time. Stores and spares having useful life of more than twelve months are
capitalised as tangible assets under “Property, plant and equipment” and are depreciated prospectively
over their remaining useful Hves in accordance with Ind AS 16.

Work in progress
Lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost includes raw material cost and a proportion of direct and
mdirect overheads up to estimated stage of completion,

Finished goods

Lower of cost and net realisable value. Costincludes cost of raw materials, direct and indirect overheads
which are incurred to bring the inventories to their present location and condition and also includes
interest as a carrying cost of goods where such goods are stored for a substantial period of time.

b) Property, Plant and Equipment
Revognition and initial measirement

Under the previous GAAP, property plant and equipment were carried m the balance sheet at thewr
cost of purchase less accumulared depreciaton and impairment losses (i any),




Daawat Foods Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies for the year ended March 31, 2020

Property, plant and equipment are stated ar thesr cost of acquisition, The cost comprises purchase
price, borrowing cost i capitalizatbon crtena are met and directly atrabutable cost of bunging the
asset 1o 1ts working condition for the mtendued use. Any trade discount and rebates are deducted in
arrving, at the purchase puce. Subsequent costs are included 1 the asset’s carrying amount or
recogiused as a separate assct, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefis
attmbutable to such subsequent cost assoctated with the ttem will How o the Company. Al other
repanr and matntenance costs are recognised in statement of profit or loss as incurred.

Ustng the deemed cost exemption avatlable as per Ind AS 101, the Company has elected to carty
forward rhese cartying value of Property, Plant and Equipment under indian GAARP as on March 31,
2016 as book value of such assets under Ind AS at the transition date Le. April 01, 2016,

Subrieqient measurement (depreciation and ieful firex)
Depreciation on property, plant and cquipment ss provided on the wiitien down vatue wroved on the
basts of the useful life prescribed under Schedule 11 of the Companies Act, 2013,

The residual values, usefud ives and method of depreciation of are reviewed at each financial year end
and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

De-recopnition

An stem of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised 1s de-recognised
upon disposal or when no future econonue benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain
or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the agser) is included in the statement of profit and loss when
the asset is de-recognised.

¢} Intangible Assets

Recognition and initial measurement

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on imitial recognition at cost. Followlng initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and accumulated
impatrment losses, if any.

Using the deemed cost exemption available as per Ind AS 101, the Company has elected to carry
forward these catrying value of Intangible asscts under Indian GAAP as on March 31, 2016 as book
value of such assets urder Ind AS at the transition date 1.e. Apeil 01, 2016,

Subseqiren! measurvement {depreciation and usefirl lves)

All fintte-lived mtangible assets, including internally developed intangille assets, are accounted for
using the cost model whereby capitalized costs are amortized over thelr estimated useful lives.
Residual values and vseful lives are reviewed at ench vepotting date and any change in the same s
accounted for prospectively.

De-recopnition

Gams or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the cartying amount of the asset and are recognised in the
statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.




Daawat Foods Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies for the year ended March 31, 2020

d) Impairment of non-financial Assets

e)

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, wherther there ts an mdication that an asser may he
impatreel. 16 any dicarion exists, or when annual impairment resting for an asset s required, the
Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount, An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an
asse’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGUY fair value less costs of disposal and 1ts value m use. Impairment
losses of contmuing operations are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Aftes impatmest, depreciation s provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its
remaining useiul life.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs diceet)y atiributable to the acguisivon, construcuon os production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of tme to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as
part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.
Barrowing costs consist of interest caleulated using the effecuve mterest rare (IR) that an ennty
tneurs 10 connection with the bortowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences
0 the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.,

Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company’s funcuonal
curgency.

Foreign Currencies
Transactions and balances

Tnitial recoguition
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at its functional currency
spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Subsegueni measurement
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional
currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Fxchange differences arising on settfement or translation of monetary items are recognised in
statement of profit and loss.

Non-monetary items thal are measured in terms of historical costin a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency ase translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is
deterrmined, The gain or loss arsing on translation of non-monetary 1tems measured at fair value is
treated 1n Hine with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in faix value of the item.




Daawat Foods Limited

Summaty of significant accounting policies for the year ended March 31, 2020

Foacehange differences

Fxchange differences ansing on the setlemeat of monetary tems at rates detferent trom those at which
they were initially recorded during the vear or reported in previous financiad statements, are recognised
as income or expense in the year in which they arise, except for exchange differences arnsing on foreign
CUFECHCY monclary iems.

The exchange differences arising on forward conttacts to hedge foreign currency risk of an underlying
asser or lability exisiing on the date of the contract are recognised mn the ~atement of profit and loss
of the perted 1n which the exchange rates change, based on the difference between:

1. foreign currency amount ol a forward contract translated at the exclange rates at the reporting
date, or the settlement date where the gransaction is settled during the reporting period, and

il the same forcign currency amount translated at the later of the date of the mception of the contract
and the last reporting date, as the case may be.

Leases
Company as a Lessee

The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for lands, The Company assesses whether
a contract contamns a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract Is, or contains,a lease if the contract
conwveys the right to control the uvse of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideradon. To assess whether 2 contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset,
the Company assesses whether: (1) the contract involves the use of an identified asset (2) the Company
has substantially all of the economic benefits frem use of the asset through the period of the lease and
(3) the Company has the right ro direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recopnizes a right-of-use asset ("ROU™)
and a corresponding lease labitity for al) lease arrangements in which 1t is a lessee, except for leases
with a term of twelve months or less (short tegm leases) and low value leases. For these short term
and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on A
straight-line basis over the term of the lease,

The right-of-use assets are mnstially recognized at cost, which compsises the initial amount of the lease
liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prios to the commencement date of the lease plus
any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less
accuimulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-ol-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-ine basis over the
shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset

Right of use assers are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in clreumstances
indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing,
the recoverable amount e, the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use} is
determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely
independent of those from other assets. T such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the
Cash Generating Unit {CGUY to which the asset belongs.




Daawat Foods Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies for the year ended March 31, 2020

The lease Hability ss initially mweasored at amortized cost ac the present salue of the fature lease
payments, The lease payments are discounied using the interest rate imphoi i the lease or, if not
readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country ot domicile of these leases.
| .ease habilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the
Company changes its assessmoent i whether i0will exeraise an exiension or a terminatuon option. The
discount rate 1s generally based oo the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease being evaluated
ar for & portfolio of leases with similar characteristics.

I egse liability and ROU asser have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease pavinents
have been classified as financing, cash flows,

Transition to Ind AS 116

The Mintstry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) through Companics (Indian Accounting Standards)
Amendment Rules, 2019 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Second Amendment Rules,
has notified Ind AS 116 Leases which replaces the existing lease standard, il AS 17 leases, and other
mterpretations. Ind AS 116 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of leases for both lessees and lessors. Tt introduces a single, on-balance sheet lease
acconnting model for lessees.

The Company has adopted Ind AS 1106, effective annual reporting pertod beginning 1 April 2019 and
applied the standard to s leases, using the modified retrospective method. The Company has applied
the standard to its leases with the cumulative impact recognised on the date of initial application (1st
April, 2019 and therefore, the information for the previous year has not been restated.

For transiton, the Company has elected not o apply the requurements of Ind AS 116 1o leases which
are expiring within 12 months from the date of transition and leases for which the underlying asset s
of low value on a lease-by-lease basis. The Company bas also used the pracueal expedient provided by
the standard when applying Ind AS 116 to leases previously classified as operating leases under Ind AS
17 and therefore, has not reassessed whether a contract, 1s or contains a lease, at the date of initial
application, relied on its assessment of whether leases are oncrous, applying Ind AS 37 immediately
before the date of initial application as an alternative to performing an impairment review, excluded
initial direct costs from measuring the right of use asset at the date of initial application and used
hindsight when determining the lease term if the contract containg options to extend or terminate the
lease,

On transition, the Company has assessed that it does not have any material impact on the amounts
recognised as at April 1, 2019, during the year ended March 31, 2020 and the future periods.

h) Fair Value Measurement

Fair value is the price that would be recetved to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an ordesly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement 1s based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place eithern

¢ [n the princpal market for the asset or hability, or

s Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or lability




Daawat Foods Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies for the year ended March 31, 2020

Compon uses valuaton rechniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data oo avatdable o measure fair value, maximzing the use of relevant observable wputs ind
minnnng the use of unobscrvable mpurs.

Al aseers and lmabilities for which fair value 18 measured or disclosed in the Gnancial statements are
categorized within the fair value hicrarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest Jevel mput that 18
stpnthicant to the far value measurement as a whole:

Level I Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level ! Valuation techniques for which the lowest level inpur that s significant to the faur value
measurement is direcily or indirectly observable

Level 3 - Valuation rechniques for which the lowest level input that ts significant to the Gur value
measwement is Unobservalle

Foy aseots and liabilistes that are recognised in the financial starements on a secursing basis, Company
deternnnes whether  transfers have occwred berween levels i the hierarchy by re assessing
categorization (hased on the lowest level input that is significant to the fir valee measurement as a
whole; al the end of cach reporting period or each case.

i) Revenuc Recognition

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer and excludes
amounts collected on behalf of third partics. A performance obligation is a promise In & contract to
ransfor a distinet good or service (or a bundle of goods and services) to the customer and is the wat
of account in Ind AS 115, A contract’s transaction price is allocated to each distinet performance
obligation and recognised as revenue, as, or when, the performance obligation is satisfied. The
Company fecognises revenue when it transfers control of a product or service to a customer. Revenue
is measured ar the fair walue of the consideration recetved or receivable, taking into account
contractually defined termis of payments and excludes taxes and duties collected on behalf of the
government. The Company recognises revenue from the following major sources:

Sale of goods:

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when 1t transfers control of the product to a customer e,
when customess are billed {in case of ex-works) or when goods are delivered at the delivery pomt, as
per terms of the agreement, which could be cither customer premises ot carrier premises who will
deliver goods to the customer. When payments received from the customers exceed revenue
recognised to date on a particular contract, any excess (a contract liabiality) is reported in the statement
of finanaal posigon under other liabilites.

Customer has a right to return for defective goods. Since the quantity of goods returned has been
minimal for years, it is highly probable that a significant reversal inn the cumulative revenue recognised
will not occur.

In order to determine if it is acting as a principal or as an agent, the Company assesses whether 1t has
exposure to the significant risks and rewards associated with the rendering of logistics services.
Revenue from rendering of logistic services provided to its customer after the transfer of control of
underlying goods 15 recognised on net basis Le. after deducting the amount eontractaally payable 1o
transporters out of the total consideration received and is recognised once the factitation of such
service ts done as the Company does not assume any performance obligation,
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Satisfaction ol petformance obligations

The Companm™s revenue 12 desnved from the single performance obligation 1o mansfer primanily rce
and other products under arrngements o which the tansfer of control of the products and the
fulfillment of the Company’s perlormance obligation oceur at the same tine, Therefore, revenue {rom
the sale of goods 1s recognised when the Company transfers control at the potnt m. time the customer
takes undespured delivery of the poods.

Whether the customer has oblamed control over the asset depends on when the goods are made
avatlable to the carrer or the buver takes possession of the goods, depending on the delivery terms,
Revenue is measured at the transaction price of the consideration recerved or receivable, the amoun
the Company expects to be enritled ro.

Pnyment rerms

The sale of goods is typically made under credit payment terms differing from customer to customer
and ranges between 0-180 days. No element of financing 1s deemed preseat as the sales are made with
a credit texm ol 180 days, which & consistent with marker practice.

Rental income:
Rental income for operating lease §s recognised on straight line basis with reference to terms of the
agreements,

Interest income:
[nterest mecome is recognised on time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding
and rate applicable.

For all financial assets measured at amortized cost, interest income is recorded using the effecuve
meerest rate {(HIR) 1e the rare that exactly discounts estimated forure cash seceiprs through the
expected life of the financial asser to the net carrying amount of the financial assets.

Financial instruments

Financial instruments are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument and are measured initially at fair value adjusted for transaction costs, except for those
carried at falr value through profic or loss which are measured instially ac fair value,

If the Company determines that the fair value at initial recognition differs from the transaction price,

the Company accounts for that instrument at that date as follows:

e at the measurement basss mentioned above if that fair value 1s evidenced by a quoted price in an
active market for an wdentical asset or liability (e a Level 1 input) or based on a valuation technique
that uses only data from obscrvable markets. The Company recognises the difference between the
fair value at initial recognition and the transaction price as a gain or loss.

e in all other cases, at the measurement basis mentioned above, adjusted 1o defer the difference
between the fair value at initial recognition and the transaction price. After initial recognition, the
Company recognises that deferred difference as a gain or loss only to the extent that it arises Fom
a change m a factor (including time) that market participanss would take into account when pricing
the asset or liability.

Subsequent measurement of financial assets and financial kabilides 1s described below.
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Financial assets

Classification and subseguent meagsurement
For the purpose of subsequens measurement, linanclal assets are classified into the following categories
upon iniual recognition:

L Financial assets at amortised cost— a financial instrament s measured at amortsed cost if both
the following conditions are mer:
o  The asset i held within a business maodel whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash fows, and
¢ Contractual terms of the asser give mse on spectfied dates to cash flows thar are solcly
payments of prncipal and mierest (8PP on the principal amount ouseanding,

Aller ipitzal measurement, such nancial assets are subsequently measured at amorised cost
using the effective interest method.

i Iovestments in equily instruments of subsidiarics - Investments m equity instruments of
subsidiaries are accounted for at cost in accordance with Ind AS 27 Separate Financial statements.

tiL. Financial assets at fair value
¢ Investments in equily instruments other than above — All equity nvestments 1n scope of
Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading are
generally classified as at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL). For all other equity
instruments, the Company decides to classify the same cither as at fair vatue through other
comprehensive income (FVOCT) or fair value through profit and loss (IFVTPL),

Fquity insttuments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all
changes recognised in the starement of profic and loss.

s Derivative assets - All derivative assets are measured at fair value through proft and loss

(FVTPL).
Financial liabilitics

Subsequent measurement
After imual recognition, the financial habilities, other than demvatve liabilities, are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method,

Amortised cost is calculated by constdering any discount ot premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the EIR. The effect of EIR amortisation is included as finance costs i the
statement of profit and loss.

Derivative liabilities - All dervative liabilittes are measured at fair value through profit and loss

(FVTPL).
Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reposted in the balance sheet if

there is a currendy enforceable legal nght o offset the recopgnised amounts and there s an intestion Lo
settle on a net basis, to realize the assers and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected erecit Josses assoctated with 1ts assets
carried at amortized cost and FVOCT debt mstruments. The impatrment methodology applied depends
on whether thege has Been a significant merease in credit risk. Note 43 details how the Company
determines whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk,

P trade receivables only, the Company applies the stmphified approach permttted by Iad AS 109
Finaneial Instruments, which requires expected lifemne losses 1o be recogpised from initial recogrinen

of the recervables.

k) Hedge accouniing policy

Initial and subscquent measurement

The Company uses derivative financial mstruments, such as forward contracis ro hedge its foreign
currency risks and tnterest rage risks and non-dertvasive financial habilities to hedge 15s foreign currency
risks. Such desivattve financial ingtruments are nitially recognised at fair value on the date on which a
detsvative contract 1s engered imto and are subsequently te-measured at fair value. Dertvatives are
carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilitics when the fair value
is negative. Foreign curtency sk of non-derivative financial liabilites used for hedging 15 measured
using spot rates.

Any gains or losses ansing from changes in the fair value of derivatives and change w foreign curtency
risk component of non-dertvative [inancial liabilities are taken directly to profit or loss, except for the
effective portion of cash thow hedges, which is recognised in OCT and later reclassified 10 profit or loss
when the hedged ttem affects profit or loss. Por the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified
as cash flow hedges where Company hedges tts exposure to vanability in cash flows that is avnbutable
to foreign currency risk and interest rate risk associated with recognised liabilities in the financial
statements.

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Company formaily designates and documents the hedge
relationship to which the Company wishes to apply hedge accounting and the risk management
objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge. The documentation includes the Company’s risk
management objective and strategy for undertaking hedge, the hedging/ economic relationship, the
hedged item or transaction, the natute of the risk being hedged, hedge ratio and how the entity will
assess the effectiveness of changes in the hedging instrument’s fair value in offsetting the exposure to
changes in the hedged item’s cash flows attributable to the hedged risk. Such hedges are expected to
be highly effective in achieving offsetting changes in cash flows and are assessed on an ongoing basis
to determine that they continue to be highly effective throughout the financial reporting periods for
which they are designated.

When 2 hedging instrament expites, or is sold or terminated, or when a hedge no longer meets the
criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative deferred gain or loss and deferred costs of hedging in
equity at that ame remains in equity until the forecast transaction occurs. When the forecast transaction
is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss and deferred costs of hedging that were
reported in equity are simmediately reclassified to profit o1 loss within other gains/ (losses).
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I} Imvestment in subsidiarics

[nvestments in subsidiaries are carved at cosi less accumulated impurment losses, 1f any. Where an
indication of imparment exists

, the carrying amount of the mvestment s assessed and written down
immediately 1o 1ts recoverable amount. On disposal of these mvestments, the difference between net
disposal proceeds and the eargying amounts are recognised in the Staterment of Profit and Loss.

m} Retirement and other employee benefits

Defined Coniribution plan

Retirement benefit m the form of provident fund is a defined coninbution scheme. The Company
has no obligaiion, other rthan the contribution payable o rhe provident fund. The Company
recognises contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employec
renders the redated service. The Company has no obligation other than the coniribution payable to
the Provided Fund.

Defined benefit plans

The Company operates a detined benefit gratuity plan in India. The cost of providing benefits under
the defined benefit plan s determined using the projected unit credit method. Gratity fund 1s
administered through Canara HSBC OBC Life Insurance in [ndia.

Other Employee Benefits

Compensated absences which are allowed to be casried forward over a period in excess of 12 months
after the end of the period in which the einployee tenders the related service are recognised as a
Lability at the present value of the defined benefit obligation as at the Balance Sheet date out of which
the obligations are cxpected (o be setided with actuarial valuatons bemg carred out at cach Balance
Sheet date. Rereasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses are recogaised immediaiely in
the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit wo statement of profu and loss in the period in
which they occur, The obligation is measured on the basis of independent actuarial valuation using
the projected unst credit method.

QOther short term benefits

Eaxpense in respect of other short-tesm benefits is recognised on the basis of amount paid or payable
for the pertod during which services are rendered by the employees,

n) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to sectle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an
msurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the
rexmbursement 1s virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement
of Profit and Leoss net of any reimbursement,
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Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation ai the end of the reporting pertod. ' he increase tn the provision
due to the passage of tme is recognised as interest expense.

o) Farnings per share

Basic earnings per share & caleulated by dividing the net profit or loss for the pentod attrsbutable to
equity sharchelders {after deducting attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equty
shares outstanding during the period. The weighted average number of cquity shares outstanding
during the period is adjusted for events mchuding a bonus issue.

For the pucpose of calculadng diluted carnings per share, the net profit ox loss for the period
ateribnuiable o equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the
period are adjusted for the effects of all dilugve potential equity shares,

Potential ordinary shares shall be treated as dilutive when, and only when, thety converston to ordinary
shares would decrease carnings per share or increase loss per share from conunuing operations.

p) Taxes
Cutrrent income iax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities, The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that
are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where the Company operates
and generates taxable income,

Current income tax relating to ftems recognised outside profit or loss 15 recognised cutside profic or
loss (cither in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation
to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management pentodically evaluates
positions taken in the tax retums with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are
subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on ternporary differences between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carsying amounts for financial reporting pusposes at the reportng date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the catry forward of unused tax credits (Minimum
alternate tax credit entitlement) and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it 1s probable chat taxable profic will be available against which the deductible termporary
differences, and the carry forward of unused tax eredits and unused tax losses can be utilized. Deferred
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recopnised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in OCT or directly m equity.

The carrying amount of defegred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
that it 15 no lenger probable that sufficient taxable profic wilt be availalle o allow all or part of the
deferred tax assel to be utihzed. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date
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and ure recognised o the extent that it has become probable that future tasable profits will allow rhe
deferred mx asset 1o be recovered.

q) Government grapts and subsidies

Gavernment grants are recognised where there 1s reasonable assurance that the grant will be recetved
and all attached conditions witl be complied with, Whea the grant relates to an expense item, it 18
recopnised as income on a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for which 1f s
intended to compensate, are expensed. When the grant relates to an asset, it is recognised as income
in equal amounts over the expected usetul fife of the related asset.

r) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash caguivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with an orginal maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

s) Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability 15 a possible obligation that arises from past events whose exsstence will be
coafirmed by the occurzence or non-occurzence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the
contrel of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognised because it s not probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligaton. A contingent liability also arises in
extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognised becaunse it cannot be measuted
reliably. The Company does not recognise a contingent lability bur discloses its existence in the
financial statements.

t)  Significant management judgement in applying accounting policies and estimation uncertainty

The following are the critical judgments and the key estimates concerning the future that management
has made 1n the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies and that may have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements or that have a significant sk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabiliies within the next
financial year,

a.  Allowance for doubtful debis — The allowance for doubtful debrs reflects management’s estimate
of losses tnxherent 1n its credit portfolio. This allowance is based on Company’s estimate of the
losses to be mncurred, which derives from past experience with similar receivabies, current and
historical past due amounts, write-otfs and collections, the careful monitoring of portfolio credit
quality and current and projecied economic and market conditions. Should the preseat economic
and financial situation persist or even wotsen, there could be a further deterioration in the financial
situatton of the Company’s debtors compared to that already taken into considesation in calculating
the allowances recognised 1nn the financial statements.

b. Defined benefit obligation (DBQO) — Management’s estimate of the IDBO is based on a number
of crtical underlying assumpiions such as standard rates of inflation, mortality, discount race and
anticipation of future salary increases. Variation in these assomptions may significantly impact the
DBO amount and the annual defimed benefit expenses.
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<.

d.

Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assets — 'The evaluation ol appheability of indicators
of impairment of assets requires assessiment of several external and internal factors which could
result in deterloraton of secoverable amaount of the assers,

Recognition of deferted tax asscts - 'I'he extent to which deferred max assets can be recognised
is based on an assessment of the probability of the future xable income aganst which the
deferted tax assers can be utihzed.

Contingent liabilities -- The Company is the subject of legal proceedings and tax issucs covering
a range of matters, which are pending in various jurisdictions. Pue to the uncertaingy inherent in
such matters, 1 1 difficult 1o predict the final outcome of sueh matters. The cases and claims
against the Company often ratse difficult and complex factual and legal 1ssues, which are subject
1o many uncertainies, mcuding but not lmited 1o the fwcts and arcumsiances of each particulay
case and claim, the jurisdiction and the differences in applicable lasw. In the normal course of
business, management consults swith legal counsel and certaln other experts on matters related to
lingation and taxes. The Company accrues a lability wheo 1t is determuned that an adverse
outcome 1s probable and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated.
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Notes to the financial stateinents for the year ended March 31, 2020

Pl amounts ane in T lakhs unless othervise stated)

Z
i} Property, plant and equipment
Description Freehold land  Leasehold land Building Plant and  Furniture amd | Offico equipment Vehicle “Totat
machinery fixture
e - et ot e vt e
As at April 01, 2018 1,075 26 IFF RS 2,500.5% 13,343.89 ELIFL] 201,77 743.10 16, 712.46
AddiLions. 6.4 374.08 1,746.58 1.82 25.74 86.06 2,250.63
Dispasals - - {37.04) - {3.64}) (40,68}
As at March 3{. 1,091.50 722.61 2,881.27 15,058.42 56.06 287.01 825.52 20,922.41
Additions - . 74.67 2,727.96 4.26 27.44 28.00 2,862,313
Disposals - (116.86) - {0.53) {117.39)
Other Adjustments* 5.19 (5.18] 282.55 1338.43) 4.43 16.60 34.84 B
As at March 31, 2020 1,096.69 ¥17.43 3,238.49 17,331.10 64.75 331,05 887.83 23,667.3%
Accumulated depreciation T
As at April 01, 2018 [EF §,249.36 LEN: 201,58 53101 10,350,709
Charge for the year 1,186.88 373 32.09 79.07 +,453.82
Disposals - (8.27}) . {3.53) (11.80)
As at March 19, 2019 s 942797 23587 40725 11,759 81
Charge for tho yoar ‘ T ey 1175.09 31.43 77.80 509,80
Disposals . - i99.92) . 0. 46) {100, 38)
As at March 31, 2020 2388 1,63%.82 10,503,14 50.64 267.16 684,59 13,16%.23
Net carrying value
At March 31, 2019 1,051,506 706,69 1,455.48 5,630,46 8.85 51.34 218,27 9,161,
At March 31, 2020 1,006.6% £93 .55 1,598.67 6,827.96 14.11 63.89 202.24 10,498.11
"Amounts have been reclassified within different classes of assets.
Contractual abligatiens
Refer note 39 (B for disclosure of contractual commitments for the acquisition of properly, ptant and equipment.
{ii) Capital worl-in-progress
As at As at
March 3%, 262¢  March 31, 2C19
Capital work-in-progress 152.1% 1,510.67
152.1% 1,510.67
Movement in capital work in progress:
Amount
Balance as at April 0%, 2018 2,217.94
Add: Additions during the year 642.08
Less: Capitalisation during the year 1,344.35
Baiance as at march 31, 2019 1,510.67
Balance as at April 01, 2019 1,510.67
Add: Additions during the year 44.30
Less: Capitalisation during the year* 1,402.78
Balance as at March 31, 2020 152.19

“"Capitalisation mainky comprises of siios al its Bhopal plant lecalion during the currens year,

Hote:

The Company has capilalised Nil borrowing costs during the year ended March 31, 2020 and % 132.59 during the year ended March 31, 2019,

(This space has been intentlonally feft blank)
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(All amounts are w1 2 lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Intangible assets
Description

Software Total
Gross carrying value
As at April 01, 2018 45.79 45.79
Additions . -
As at March 31, 2019 45,79 45.79
Additions 1.54 1,54
" As at March 31, 2020 i 47.33 47.33
Accumulated amortisation
As at April 01, 2018 16.81 36.81
Charge for the year 4.64 4.64
As at March 31, 2019 41,45 41.45
Charge for the year 1.88 1.88
As at March 31, 2020 43.33 43,33
Net carrying value
AL March 31, 2019 4.34 4,34
At March 31, 2020 4,00 4.00

(This space has been intentionally left blank}
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DAAWAT FOODS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 34, 2020
(AU amounts are in ¥ lakhs unless otherwise slated)

investments - Non-current

Investments carried at cost
in subsidiary companies and fellow subsidiary

Investments at fair vatue through statement of profit and loss
Key man insurance policies

Total

Agaregate amount of
- Unquoted investments
Total

Details of fnvestment; is as follows:

fnvestients carried at cost

Equily instruments - Unquoted
#) in subsidiary companies
10,000 (March 31, 2019: 10,000} fully paid equity shares of € 10 each in L7 Agri
Services Private Limited (March 31, 20M9; T 10 each)
2,222,019 iMarch 31, 2019: 2,222,019 fully paid equity shares of T 10 each in Fresco
Fruits & Nuts Private Limited (March 31, 2019 T 10 each)
Less: Provision for dimimution in the value of investment

ii) in fellow subsidiary
109,918 (March 31, 2019: 169,918) fully paid equity shares of T 10 each in Raghunath
Agro Industries Private Limited {March 31, 2019: ¥ 10 each)

Total

l.oans

Security deposits
Loan to related parties* (refer note 45)
Loans to employees (refer note 45)

*‘Includes amounts due from related parties;
Fresco Fruit & Nuts Private Limited
Less: Provision for doubtful loan

Brealc-up of security details

Loans considered good - Unsecured

Loans which have significant increase in credit risk
Loans - credit impaired

{This spuce has been intentionally left blank)

As at
March 31, 2020

As at
March 31, 2019

85.15 306.20
85.15 306.20
77,14
77.14
162.29 306,20
85,15 306.20
85,15 _306.20
1.00 1.00
221.05 221.0%
{221.05) -
1.00 222.05
84.15 84.15
84.1% 84,15
85.15 306.20
As at As at

March 31, 2020

March 31, 2019

169,35 169,37
- 100.00
70.50 39.33
239.85 128,70
100.00 100.00

{100.00} -
- 100.00

As at As at

March 31, 2020

23%.85

March 31, 201%

378.70

239,85

328.70




BAAWAT FOODS LIMITED

Hotes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

(ALl amounts are in 7 lakhs undess otherwise stated)

Other financial assets

Bank deposits with maturity of more than 12 months frefer note (a) below)

Receivable from insurance company [refer note (b) below)

Note

As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
7154 22115
13,410,53 13.410.53
13,488.07 13,631.68

a} The deposits are restricted as they are held as margin money deposits against guarantecs given by the Company.
by The Company has insurance claim recoverable {classified into non-current assets) amounting to ¥ 13,410.53 as at March 31, 2020. The claim is attributable o (he toss
of raw maierial, incurred by the Company, due 1o major fire which had occurred in the works premises of the Company in £Y 2014-15. The Company had recognized the
insurance claim recoverable (asset) amounting to T 17,810.88 in FY 2014-15, based on management’s assessment of 1oss amounl and positive outcome in the surveyors’
reports then appointed by the Insurance Agency. Later on, the Insurance Agency repudiated the insurance claim vide its order dated February 4, 2016, against which the
Company had filed a civil suit with District Court of Raisen, Bhopal, the cutcome of which is pending. On the basis of developments in the case including the surveyor’s
report (subsequent to reports submilted by surveyors appointed by the Insurance Agency during Lhe matial phase and which were the basis for the Company o recognize
such asset), the Company had written off claim amounting to T 4,400 in FY 201516, The Company, based on management’s assessment of facts of the case and opinion
ohtained from the external legal counsel, has concluded that it holds merits and good probability 1o wi- the case, as the claim has irregolarly been repudialed

Deferred tax assets (net)

On temporary difference between the book base and tax base
Deferred tax Habilities arising on account of

Unrealised foreign exchange gain on forward contracts

Key man insurance policy

Deferred tax assets arising on account of

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
Unreatised foreign exchange (gain)/loss on forward contracts
Provision for employee benefits

Provision for doubtful debts

Provision for interest on advance and others

Provision for doubtful toan

Deferred tax assets (net)

Movement in deferred tax assets (net)

Particutars

beferred tax liabilities arising on account of
Key man insurance policy

Deferred tax assets arising on account of

Praperty, plant and equipment and intangible assets
tnrealised foreign exchange (gain)/loss on forward contracts
Provision for employee benefits

Provision for doubtful debts

Provision for interest on advance and others

Provision for doubtful loan

Deferred tax assels (net)

Particulars

beferred tax assets arising on account of
tnrealised foreign exchange (gain}/icss on forward contracts

Deferred tax liabilities arising on account of
Praperty, plant and equipment and intangible assets
Provision for employee benefits

Provision for doubtful debts

Deferred Governmentl Grant

Deferred tax assets (net)

As at

March 31, 2020

As al
March 31, 2019

Recognised in
As at other

34.16)
(19.42) .
{19.42) (34.16)
131.41 159.36
56.51 -
30.21 22.43
7.16 3.66
74.97
25.17 .
325.43 185.45
306.01 151.29
Recognised in As at

statement of

April 01, 2019 comPrehen51ve profit and loss March 31, 2020
. income
{19.42) [19.42)
- - (19.42) (19.42)
159,36 - (27.95) 131.41
(34,16} 83.23 7.43 56.50
22.44 12.14 4.35) 30.23
3.65 3,50 7.15
74.97 74,97
- - 25,17 25.17
151.29 95,37 78.77 325.43
151,29 95,37 59.35 306.01
Recognised in . \
As at other Recogrised in As at

statement of

April 01, 2018 com.prehenswe profit and loss March 31, 2019
income

40.75) {34.16) 40.75 {34.16)

{40,75) {34.16) 40,75 {34.16)

161.57 (2.21} 156.36
9.50 £.97 5.97 22.44
3,65 - . 3.65
124 - (3.24) .

177.96 6,27 0.52 185.45

137.21 {27.19) 41.27 151,29
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DAAWAT FOODS LIMITED
totes to the financial staternents for the year ended March 31, 2020
(All amounts are in ¥ fakhs unless otherwise stated)

Other non-current assets As at As at
tarch 11, 2020 March 31, 2049
Prepaid expenses 2145 215
Capital advances’
Unsecured, considered good 53,21 M7 58
Unsecured, conswlered doubtful 12412
lLess: Provision for doubtful advances (124.12)
55,36 219.73
“Value of contracts i capital account remaining Lo be executed as at 31 March 2020 4s € 162,87 {March 31, 2019 € 40.09). Refer note 39 (B3},
Income-tax assets (net)
As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Incoime-iax asset (et of Provision T 7,202.07 (March 31, 2019: T 3,204.47)] 333,48 257,31
333.48 257,33
inventories As at As at

March 31, 2020
Raw malerial

March 31, 2019

Paddy** 18,796.22 28,011.26
Work-in-progress* 164.96 201.55
Finished goads {including goods in transit of ¥ 926.29 (March 31, 2019 1,112.23)** 13,858.77 10,721.53
Stores and spares 202.85 263.79
Packing material

Bardan 2,021.49 2,512.83

Others 614.76 637.10

35,659.05 42,348.06

“There is substantial period of time between the acquisition of Paddy and its conversion inte finished goods, Considering the seasonal nature of procurement and aligning
with the natural ageing process to gain optimum and effective cutput of finished goods. Therefore, basis the average holding period of paddy, the company capitatises
the tnterest considering the average rate of interest on borrowings. The interest capitalised as at March 31, 2020 is £ 1,122.16 {March 31, 2019: T 988.81).

As at
March 31, 2020

Trade receivables

As at
March 31, 2019

Trade receivables* 12,908.36 7,246.62

L.ess: Allowance for expected credit loss 18.44 10.44
12,879.92 7,236.18
As at As at

March 31, 2020
Break-up of security details
Trade receivables considered good - Secured

March 31, 2019

Trade receivables considered good - Unsecured 12,908.36 7,246.62
Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk . -
Trade receivables - credit impaired - -
Total 12,908.36 7.,246.62
Less: Loss atlowance 28,44 10.44
Total trade receivables 12,879.92 7,236.18
Includes amounts due from retated parties (Refer note 45);
LT Foods Americas Inc. {Formerly known as Kusha Inc.) 888.58 1,554.37
Universal Traders, Inc. 7.10 6.49
LT Foods Middle East DMCC 422.03 382.35
LT Foods Europe B.V. 1,979.90 641,10
Raghunath Agro Industries Private Limited 5,288.07
LT international Limited . 0.71
Deva Singh Shyam Singh 4457.87
Raghuvesh Warehousing Private Limited .41 -
Daawal Kameda {india) Private Limited 0.32 .
Oswal Woollen Mills Limited 11,114 {5.46)

{i) No trade or other receivables are due from director or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person,

Transferred receivables

The carrying amounts of trade receivables include receivables which are subject to a factoring arrangement, Under this arrangement, Lthe Company has transferred the
relevant receivables to the factor in exchange for cash and is prevented from selling or pledging the receivables. However, the Company has retained late payment and
credit risk. The Company therefore continues Lo recognise the transierred assets in their entirety i its balance sheet, The amount repayable under the factoring
agreement is presented as secured borrowing, The Company considers the held to collect business model to remain appropriate for these receivables and hence

conLtinues measuring them at amortised cost,




DAAWAT FOODS LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

(Al amounts are in T lakhs unless otherwise stated)

12 {ash and cash equivalents

Balances wilh hanks in current accounts
Cash on hand
In indian currency

1

w

Other bank balances

Deposits with maturity of more Lhan 3 months but less than 12 months al balance sheet date

i4 Loans

Loans to employees (Refer nole 45)

Break-up of security details
Loans considered good - Secured
Loans considered gaod - Unsecured

Loans which have significant increase in credit risk

Loans - credit impaired

15 GOther current financial assets

Derivative assets
Other financial assets

16 Other current assets

Prepaid expenses

Balances with government authorities
Advance to suppliers*

Staff advance

* Includes advance given to related parties:

Fresco Fruit & Nuts Private Limited
Shri Balaji Trading Company
Raghuvesh Agri Foods Private Limited

{This space has been intentionatly left biank)

As al As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
21.79 181.31
32.32 30.04
54,11 211,35
As at As at
march 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
460,68 137.87
460.68 137,87
As al As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
70.50 29.67
70,50 29.67
As at As at

March 31, 2020

March 31, 2019

F0.50 29.67
70.5¢ 29.67
As at As at
March 3%, 2020 March 31, 2019
- 315.45
13.48 34.00
23.48 349.45
As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
447,47 952,44
323.49 443,55
5,980.76 4,441,315
8,12 21.83
6,75%.84 5,859.17
0.00 1.00
$27.02 125.02
33.77 88.75



DAAWAT FOODRS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(AL amounts are in T lakhs untess otherwise stated)

17 Share capital As at As at

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Autherised share capital
24,500,000 fMarch 31, 2015; 24,500,000} Equity shares of 310 each {March 31, 2019; T 10 each) 2,450.00 2,450.00
1,600,000 {March 31, 2019: 16,00,000) Preference shares of ¥ 10 each (March 31, 2019: ¥ 10 each) 160.00 160.00

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up equity shares

- 18,905,291 Ordinary equity shares of ¥ 10 each (March 31, 2019: % 10 each} 1,890.53 1,890.53
~ 250,050 Non voling equity shares of T 10 each (March 31, 2019: € 1{} each) 25.00 15.00
1,915.53 1,915.53

(a} There is no movement in equity share capital during the current year and previous year.

{b) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
Particuiars Na, % holding No. % helding
-Ordinary equity shares of % 10 each {March 31, 2019: ¥ 10 each)
india Agribusiness Fund Limited* 56,135,546 29.81% 56,135,546 29.8%%
LT Foods Limited (the Holding Company) 1,32,49,945 70.09% 1,32,49,945 70.09%

-Nen voting equity shares of ¥ 10 each {(March 31, 2019 ¥ 10 each)
LT Foods Limited (the Holding Company) 2,50,049 100% 1,50,049 100%

As per records of the Company, including its register of sharehelders/members and other declaration received from sharehelders regarding beneficial interest, the above
shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownership of shares.

(c) Sharehoiding structure As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
Shares held by the Holding Cempany No. Amount No, Amount

Equity shares of ¥ 10 each
LY Foods Limited (the Holding Company) 1,34,99,994 1,350.00 1,34,99,994 1,350.00

(d} The Company has not issued any equity shares issued pursuant to contract without payment being received in cash, allotted as fully paid up ty way of bonus issues and
brought back during the last five years,

(e} Terms and rights attached to voting and non-voting equity shares
The Company has two class of equity shares, voting and nona-voting, having a par value of £ 10 per share. Each holder of vating equity shares is entitled to one vote per
share. Mon-voting equity holder is not entitled to vote.
In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holder of eguily shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, alter payment of all labilities, The
distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders,

* Subsequent te year end, Saudi Agricultural & Livestock investment Company has acquired stake in the Daawat Foods Limited (‘the Company’) through its subsidiary
company, United Farmers Investment Company for an amount of USD 172.3 Lakhs. The transaction entailed acquisition of 29.81% holding of India Agri Business Fund,
sponsored by Rabobank ang 0.1% holding of Real Trust, There has been no impact on the shareholding of LT Foods Limited {the Holding Company} that continues to hold
the balance stake of 70.09%.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)




DAAWAT FOODS LIMITED
Notes 1o the financial staternents for the year ended March 31, 2020
(ALl amounts are in T lakhs unless otherwise stated)

18 Other equitly As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

A) £quity component of Non redeemable cimulative preference shares
Opening balance -
Add: Equity component of preference share capital 524.03
Closing balance* 524,03
* This note covers the equity component of the issued Mon redeemable cumulative preference shares. The biability component is reflected in note
18, Also, refer note 19 (D)
B) Retained Earnings and Other Reserves As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
(i} Retained earnings
Opening balance 18,228.70 14,696.66
Add: Profit for the year 5,097.01 3,545.21
Iltems of other comprehensive income recogrised directly in retained earnings
- Remeasurements of post-employment benefits obligation (net of taxes) (21.54) (13.17)
Closing balance 23,304.17 18,228.70

(ii) General reserve

Opening balance 223.68 223.68
Change during the year - -
Closing balance 223.68 223.68

(iif) Securities premium reserve

Opening balance 1,725.51 1,725.51
Change during the year - -
Closing balance 1,725.51 1,725,51%

(iv) Cash flow hedging reserve

Opening balance 249,91 -

Change during the year (782.40) 249.91
Closing balance (532.49) 249,91
Total other equity (B) 14,720.87 10,427.80

Nature and purpose of other reserves

General reserve;

The Company had transferred a pertion of the net profit before declaring dividend to general reserve pursuant to the earlier provision of
Companies Act 1956. Mandatory transfer to general reserve is not required under the Companies Act 2013,

Securities premium reserve;
Securities premium reserve represents premium received on issue of shares. The reserve is to be utilized in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act.

Cash flow hedging reserve

The cash flow hedging reserve is used to recognise the effective portion of gains or losses on derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash
flow hedges.

(This space has been intentionally teft blank)
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Notes to the financial statements fer the year ended March 31, 2020
{All amounts are in T lakhs unless otherwise stated)

19 Long - term borrowings

Secured loans
From banks

As at
March 31, 2020

As at
March 31, 2019

Vehicle toans ) 312 22.68
From Cthers
Term loans 1,296.46
VYehicle loans 6.59 13.38
Linsecured loans .
- 10% Non-cumutative redeemable preference shares (refer note 1) below) 1,475.97 2,000,00
1,511.68 3,332.52
Detaiis of long term borrowings are as follows;
Name of the bank and financial institution Repayments Total amount of As at As at
: instalment March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
a)Term loans
{Refer note A part (i) for interest rates)
Hero Fincorp Lirited {Refer note C i) 20 equal quarterly 43,69 185.87
Axis Finance Limited (Refer note C i} Bullel repayment on - 645.53
February 22, 2021
STCI Finance Limited {Refer note C iv) ~ Bullet repayment on 216,21 639.82
February 14, 2021
) Vehicle loans
{refer note A part (if) for interest rate and note C part (i} for security)
HDFC Bank 36 to 48 Months 2.12 31.12 65.60
Toyota Financial Services India Limited 36 Months 0.63 6.59 13.38
253.92 1,550.20
Current maturities of long- term borrowings (Refer note 24) 217,68

A, Details of interest rate for each type of borrowings

116.21

i. The interest on above term loans.from non banking finance companies are fixed in nature. As of March 31, 7020, the interest rate ranges from 10.50 % to 12.50 % on rupse

term loan {March 31, 2019: 10.50 % te 12,50 % per annum),

il. The interest on above vehicle toans from HDFC Bank and Toyota Finance Services India Limited are fixed in nature. As of March 31, 2020, the interest rate ranges frem 7,95

% t0 9.25 % per annum (March 31, 2019: 7,95 % to 14,00 % per annum},
B. Details of gliarantee for each type of borrowings

Guaranteed by directors As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
(1} Term loans 216,21 1,471.22
216.21 1,471.22

C. Details of security for each type of borrowing ;
i) Vehicte loans from HDFC Bank and Toyota Finance are secured against hypothecation of respective motor vehicle financed.

) Rupee term {oan from Hero Fin Corp Limited amounting to Nil {March 31, 2019: ¥ 185.87) is secured against pledge of shares held by and Corporate Guaraniee of Raghuvesh
Holdings Private Limited in which directors are interested and personal guarantee of directors.

iti) Rupee term loan from Axis Finance Limited amounting to Nit (March 31, 2019: ¥ 645.53) is secured against pledge of shares held by and Corporate Guarantee of Raghuvesh
Holdings Private Limited in which directors are interested and personal guarantee of directors.

W) Rupee term loan from STCI Finance Limited amounting to ¥ 216,21 {March 31, 2019: T 639.82) is secured against pledge of shares held by and Corporate Guarantee of
Raghuvesh Holdings Private Limited in which directors are interested and personal guarantee of directors.

@

On March 28, 2019, the Company issued non-cumulative redeemable preference shares 1,562,500 of face value T 10 each fully paid up to LT Foods Limited (the Holding
Company’) at a premium of ¥ 118 per share carrying a coupon rate of 10%, for an aggregate sum of ¥ 2,000.00 redeemable at the expiry of 8 years, During the year, with
effect lrom April 1, 2019 the Company and the holding company have revised the agreement to extend the tenure from 8 years to 19 years, Given this is a significant
modification in the tenure and conditions, the Company has evaluated the accounting treatment and considered this as extinguishment of prior agreement and entering into
a fresh agreement, These preference shares are redeemable on the comptetion of 19 years from the date of issuance. Such instrument is considered as compound financial
instrument as per ind AS 32 Financial Instruments @ Presentation’ and In AS 109 ‘Financial nstruments' with a component of debt and equity. Above amount represents debt
cemponent of the instrument. The equity component of the instrument amounting to T 524.03 is reflected in Note 18(A), being excess of transaction value ¥ 2,000.00 and
present value of future cash flows in accordance with the contractual terms and conditions considering the nature of instrument as unsecured, The Company has used 14%
per annum as discount rate for calculating the present value of contractual cash flows.




DAAWAT FOODS LIMITED
Hotes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
{All amounts are in T lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Reconciliation of Babllities arising from finan. g activilies:-

The change in Company’s Habilities arising from sinancing activities can be classified as follows:

“Liabilities fi:'(;l.ﬁ“ﬁ;”i'nancing activities

Particidars

Long term Short term Total
borrowings borrowings
Net debl as at April 1, 201§ ’ TUTTRER0E | 36,083.70 39,633.89
Cash movement:
- Proceeds - B -
- Repayment {1,296.27) {6,997.81) {8,294.08)
- Equily component of compound financial instiiament* {524,03) (524.00)
- Interest expenses 107.76 4,422,82 4,5300.58
- nterest paid {307 . 76) 4,423 82} £4,5930.58)
Net debt as at March 31, 2020 1,729.89 29,085.89 30,815.78
* Refer Note 18 (A} and 19 (D) i - T
tiabilities from financing activities
Particulars o Long term Short term
borrowings borrowings Total
Net debt as at April 1, 2018 5,141.21 33,606.06 38,747.27
Cash movement:
- Proceeds 2,000.00 2,576.02 4,576.02
- Repayment (3,591.02) - (3,591.02)
- Interest expenses 290.81 3,501.55 3,792.36
- Interest paid {290.81) (3,501.55) {3,792.36)
- Impact of reinstatement, - {98.38%) (98.38)
Net debt as at March 31, 2019 3,550.19 36,083.70 39,633.89

{This spoce has been Intentionatly left bionk)
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DAAWAT FOODS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
{All amounts are in T lakhs unless otherwise stated)

As at
March 31, 2020

Long-term provisions

Provision for employee benefits (Refer note 41)

As at
March 31, 201%

Provision for gratuity 141,28 94,18
Provision for compensated absence 32,48 29,84
173.76 124.0?;

Other non-current liabilities As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Deferred government grant 40.39 58.95
Advance from customers [Refer note (a) below) 6,235.81 7,446.73
6,276,20 7.505.68

Mote:

In the prior yedrs, the Company had obtained business advance, amounting Lo T 7,446.73, from its foreign customer which is fellow subsidiary of
the Company (the “Customer”) for supply of its products in few identified years commencing from Y 72019-20. During the year ended March 31,
2028, the Company and the Customer have mutually agreed and medified the terms and conditions of supply of such products. The Company has
duly communicated the same to authorized dealer and in process of ensuring other compliances. Basis revised terms and conditions, the Company
has accrued interest costs amounting to T 297 during the year, applying rate of interest applicable in similar and comparabie market transaction

i.e, @ Libor + 350 Basis Points.

As at
March 31, 2020

Shert-term borrowings

As at
March 31, 2019

Secured
From barsks
Rupee working capital loans 17,399.60 30,975.88
Packing credit foreign currency toans 11,686,129 5,107.82
79,085,89 36,083.70
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2020

March 31, 2019

a) Rupee working capital loans

The rupee working capital loans are secured by hypothecation of inventories and trade receivables of the
Company. These are further secured by personal guarantees of directors and corporate guarantee of the
holding company.,

The rupee working capital leans are repayable on demand and interest on the above loans from banks are
linked to the respective bank base rates/ MCLR which are floating in nature, The interest rate ranges from
8,80% to 12.00% per annum {March 31, 2019; 8.50% to 12,00% per annum) on rupee working capital ioans.

17,399.60

b} Packing credit foreign currency loans

The packing credit foreign currency loans are secured by hypothecation of inventories and trade
receivables of the Company. These are further secured by personal guarantees of directors and corporate
guarantee of the holding company.

The interest rate ranges from Libor + 200 Basis Points to Libor + 350 Basis Points (March 31, 2019: Libor +
200 Basis Points to Libor + 350 Basis Points ) in case of packing cradit foreign currency loans.

11,686.29

30,975.88

5,107.82

29,085,89

36,083.7¢

As at
March 31, 2020

Trade payables

As at
March 31, 2019

Dues to
Micro and small enterprises 124.23 60.06
Others* 7,375.07 6,572.86
7,499.30 6,632,92
" Includes payable to related parties (Refer note 45)
Raghuvesh Agri Foods Private Limited 42.31 -
S.K. Trading Company 0.05
Super Texfab Private Limited 427.69 327.62
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DAAWAT FOODS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(Atl amounts are in ¥ takhs unless otherwise stated)

Due to micro, small and medium enterprises as defined under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development (MSMED) Act, 2006 to
the extent information available with the management is given below:-

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

the principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of cach
accounting year:

- Principal amount remaining unpaid 124.23 60,06
- Interest accrued and remaining unpaid as al year end N :
124.23 60.06

Arnount. of interest paid by the Company to the suppliers in terms of section 16 of the Act.

Amount paid ¢ the suppliers beyond the respective due date.

Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in payments {which have been paid but

beyond the due date during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the Act.

Amount, of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of accounting year. -

Amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, untit such date when

the interest dues as above are actually paid 1o the smatl enterprise, for the purpose of disaliowance as a

deductible expenditure under section 23 of this Act. . .
Total 124.23 60.06

Other financial liabilities As ay As at

March 31, 2020

March 31, 2019

Derivative liability 224,53 :
Current maturities of long term borrowings (refer note 19) 216,21 217.68
Security deposit 11,50 11.50
Other {iabilities* 906.43 778.76
1,358.67 1,007.94
* Includes payable to director {Refer note 45)
Ashwani Kumar Arora 5.28
Other current liabilities As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Advances from customers* (Refer note 45) 7,438.70 3,798,50
Statutory liabilities 244,89 122,05
Deferred government grant 18.56 22.74
7,702.15 3,943.29
includes advance received from related parties
1.7 Foods Americas inc. {Formerly known as ¥usha Inc.) 1,210.92 -
Raghunath Agro Industries Private Limited - 2,321.02
Nature Bio Foods Limited 5.56 232.38
LT Foods Limited 6,088.45 1,222.84
Short- term provisions As at As at

Provision for employee benefits (Refer note 41)

March 31, 2020

March 31, 2019

Provision for gratuity 18.67 12.97
Provision for compensated absences 11.66 14,41
30.33 17.38

Current tax liabilities As at As at

Provision for tax [net of advance tax T 1,536,729 (March 31, 2019 ¥ 1,459.24)]

March 31, 2020

346.51

March 31, 2019

743.49

346,53

743.49




DAAWAT FOODS LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

(ALl amounts are in T takhs unless otherwise stated)
28 Revenue from operations

Sale of products
Rice
£xport
Domestic
Others
Export
[omestic
Sale of traded goods *
Export
Domestic
Other operating revenue
Processing charges

* Details of products sold
Rice
Total

29 Other income

Rental income

Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment {net)
Interest an bank fixed depesits and others

Income from fleet lease

Government grant income®

Interest on income tax refunds

Met gain on foreign currency transactions and translations
Mmiscellanecus income

Year ended
March 31, 2020

Year ended
March 31, 2019

29,755.53 29,288.10
47,190.93 40,694.40
2,040.97 2,111.0%
7,268.71 5,644.49
8,022.10 1,578.10
2,967.36 4,022.68
1,592.14 1,582.98
. 98,837.74 84,921.84
10,989,456 5,600.78
10,989.46 5,600.78
Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
16.50 15.00
i1.66 11.32

53.73 49.32

108.71 87.61

433.74 27.69

42,23 -
386.82 366.79

131.49 20.84
1,184.88 578.57

* inclodes grant received under scheme of Industrial Promotion Policy, 2014 of Government of Madhya Pradesh amounting te T 411 during the year.

{March 31, 2019: Nit)

30 Cost of material consumed

Opening stock
Paddy

Bardana

Packing material

Add: purchases
Paddy

Bardana

Rice

Packing material
Other

Less; closing stock
Paddy

Bardana

Packing material

Tatal

Consumption details
Paddy
Bardana
Rice
Packing material
Cther

Year ended
March 31, 2020

Year ended
March 31, 2019

28,011.26 15,830.80
2,512.83 2,615.80
637.10 828.02
31,161.19 19,274.62
41,392.95 61,159.78
11.50 19.76
14,067.67 7,474.01
3,127.61 3,199,78
1,760.64 1,547.24
60,160,37 73,400.57
18,796.22 28,011.26
1,021.49 2,512.83
614.76 637.10
21,432.47 31,161,19
70,089.09 61,514.00
50,607.99 48,979.32
502.84 122.73
14,067.67 7,474.01
3,149.95 1,390.70
1,760.64 1,547.24
70,089.09 61,514,00




DAAWAT FOODS LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 3%, 2020

(AlL amounts are in T lakhs untess olherwise stated)

31 Purchases of stock-in-tr ade

Rice
{Others

32 Changes in inventories of finished goods and stock in trade

Opening Stock
Finished goods
Work-in-progress

Closing stock
Finished goods
Work-in-progress

Detail of work in progress, finished goods and stock in trade
Work-in-progress
Finished goods and stock in trade

Rice

33 Employee benefit expense

Salaries, wages and bonus
Contribution Lo provident and other fund*
Staff welfare expenses

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
10,419.45 6,137.30
36.18 117.47
10,455.63 6,254.77
Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2020

March 3%, 2019

10,721.53 9,800.87
20155 204.60
13,858.77 10,721.53
164.96 201.55
(3,100.65) (917.61)
164.96 201.55
13,858.77 10,721.53
14,023.73 10,923.08
Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2020

March 31, 2019

*For descriptive notes on disclosure of defined benefif obligation, refer note 41 - Employee benefit obligations.

34 Finance cost

Interest on working capital loans
Interest on term loans
Interest on delay in payment of statutory liabilities

Qther borrowing costs®

1,837.88 1,586.96
79.23 75.06
100.74 118.09
2,017.85 1,780.11
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
2,562.89 2,425.89
107.76 290.81
14.58 30.54
2,685,23 2,747.24
1,859.93 1,045.12
4,545,716 379736

*This amount includes interest amounting to ¥ 221,40 provided on preference shares issued during the previous year.
Note: The capitalisation rate used to determine the amount of borrowing costs to be capitalised is the weighted average interest rate applicable to
the Coempany's general borrowings during the year, in this case 10.019% (March 31, 2019: 8.413%). Also, refer note 2(ii) and note 10.

35 Depreciation and amortisation expense

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
Amortisation of intangible assets

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
1,509.8C 1,453.83
1.88 4.64
1,511.68 1,458.47




DAAWAT FOODS LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

(ALl amounts are in ¥ lakhs unless otherwise stated)

36 Other expenses

Rent (refer note 50)

Wages

Power and fuel

Securily services

Packing expenses

Repairs

- Plant and rnachinery

- Building

- Others

Stores and spares consumed

Insurance expenses

Legal and professional charges

Rates and taxes

Donation and charity

Directors’ sitting fees

Auditors’ remuneration {refer point A below)
Vehicle running and maintenance

Travelling and conveyance

Commission o selling agents

Clearing, forwarding and freight charges
Sales promotion expenses

Provision for diminution in value of investment
Pravisien for capital advance and other loans and advances
Business promotion expenses

Provision for doubtful recoveries

Other administrative expenses

A, Auditors’ remuneration

Statutory audit (including fees for timited reviews)
Certification fees
(uit of pocket expenses

B. Corporate social responsibility expenses

i) Gross amount required to be spent hy the Company as per section 135 of the

Companies Act, 2013

it) Amount spent {in cash) during the vear on:

-Construction/acquisition of an asset
-on purpose other than above
Total amount remaining unspent during the year

{This space is intentionally left blank)

Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2020 Karch 31, 2019
511.64 299.85
489.98 395.65
1,189.48 1,080.46
130.37 136.18
276,36 249.66
113,82 112,71
11.49 24,17
10.70 3.37
1.028.84 1,007.43
65.63 71.38
377.57 112.09
156,46 208,04
13.34 75.76
6.80 6.00
13.13 13.72
21.09 17.19
149.28 157.73
42,06 11.09
2,117.82 1,778.63
59.87 106.38
221.05 2.55
224.12 75.84
23,82 13.60

18.00 -
134.47 17917
7,407.19 6,134.60

Year ended
March 31, 2020

Year ended
March 31, 2019

12.25 12.25
0.50 .60
0.38 0.87
13,13 13.72
Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2020

102.31

March 31, 2019

68.85

102,31

68.85
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DAAWAT FOODS LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

(All amounts are in T lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Tax expense

The income tax expenses consists of the following :

Year ended
March 31, 2020

Year ended
March 31, 2019

Current tax expenses for the current year 2,024.87 1,979.78
Current tax expenses pertaining to prior years 34.16
2,059.03 1,979.78
Deferred tax expenses
Deferred tax expenses / (credit) for the current year (39.37) (41.28)
(5%9.37) (41.28)
Total tax expense 1,999,646 1,938.50

The major components of income tax expense and the reconciliation of expense hased on the domestic effective tax rate of 25.168% and the

reported tax expense in statement of profit or loss are as follows:

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Profit betere income taxes 7,096.67 5,483.71
At country’s statutory income tax® rate of 25.168% (March 31, 2019: 34.944%) 1,786.09 1,916.23
Adjustments in respect of current income tax

Expenses disallowable under the income tax act 109.19 22.98
Impact of change in tax rate 4%.93

Tax pertaining to prior years 34.16

Qthers 20.29 (0.71)
Total tax expense 3,999.66 1,938,50

*The Company elected to exercise the option permitted under Section 1158AA of the Income-tax Act, 1961 as introduced by the Yaxation Laws
(Amendment) Ordinance, 2019. Accordingly, the Company has re-measured its Deferred Tax assets / liabilities basis the rate prescribed in the said
section. The impact of this change has been recognised in the statement of Profit & Loss and cther comprehensive income for the year.

Earnings per share

Year ended
March 31, 2020

Year ended
March 31, 2019

Profit attributable to equity shareholders 5,097.01 3,545, 21
Numbers of weighted average equity share outstanding at the year end for Basic and diluted 191.55 191.55
Nominat value per share 10.00 10.00
Earnings per equity share

Basic and Diluted 26.61 18.51

Note: There are no potential equity shares in the company.

{This space is intentionatly left blank)




DAAWAT FOODS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(A amounts are n ¥ lakhs unless otherwise stated)

3% Contingencies and other commitments: As at As at

March 31, 2070 March 31, 2019
{A) Contingent babilities

t. inceme-tax demands (reter point a) 59.57 434.48
it Corporate guarantees given by Company 151.96 209,92
I Duty saved under EPCG Licenses (export obligation outstanding T 1,979.97 . N
(March 31, 2019: % 2,067.92) 266,10 780.76
Totai 477.63 925.16

a. The Company had filed appeals in previous years against the order of Assessing Officer (AQ) before Commissioner of Income tax (CIT
(Appeals)) for the Assessment Year 2007-08 and Assessment Year 2009-10. The CIT (Appeals) has allowed substantial relief to the Company
and aller allowing appeat ettect of the order of UIT (Appeals) by the AQ, the demand has been reduced to ® 59.57 {March 31, 20019: ¥ 59,57 ).
The Company has filed appeals against the order of CIT{Appeals) for the above said assessment year before the income Tax Appellate Tribunat
{ITAT}, on issues for which relief has not been given by CIT{Appeals). The matter is still pending with ITAT,

The Company had filed appeals in previous years against the order of Assessing Officer (AD) before Commissioner of Income tax (CIT
{Appeals)) for the Assessment Year 2012-13 to Assessment Year 2001415 w.r.t the total demand of T 746 against which T 131.04 was deposited
under protest. The CIT {Appeals) has allowed substantial relief to the Company thus reducing the demand to ¥ 1.20 for which the company
has made provision.

The Company had filed appeals in previcus years against the order of Assessing Officer {AQ) before Commissioner of come tax {CIT
(Appeals)) for the Assessment Year 2015-16 w.r.t the total demand of ¥ 298.74. The CIT (Appeals) has allowed substantial relief to the
Company thus reducing the demand to T 2.70 for which the company has made provision.

During the financial year 2017-18, the Company has received demands under section 271{1)(c) for the Assessment Year 2010-11 for T 4.08 .

The Company had filed an appeal before the CIT (Appeals}. The CIT {Appeals} has allowed the appeal of the company and deteted the
demand.

During the financial year Z018-19, the Company had received demands under section 143(3) for the Assessment Year 2016-17 for T 188.96.
The said demand suffers from mistakes apparent from recerd and accordingly company had filed an application for rectification of mistake
u/s 154 after which the demand will get reduced to ¥ 93.88 . Against this demand of ¥ 93.88 , the company has made provision of ¥ 22.928
and for the balance demand of ¥ 70.89 the Company has filed an appeal before the CIT {Appeals) for which relief has been allowed to the
Company.

The management is confident that its position is likely to be upheld in the appeals pending and no tiability could arise on the Company on
account of these proceedings.

(B} Capital commitments
Capital commitments remaining to be executed and not provided for, net of capital advances € 162.87 (March 31, 2019; T 40.09).

40 The carrying amount of assets pledged as security for short-term borrowings are:

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Financial assets

Trade receivables 12,879.92 7,236.18
Current assets

Inventories 35,659,05 42,348.06
Total assets pledged as security 48,538,97 49,584.,24

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

(Al amounts are in T lakhs unless othorwise stated)

41 Employee benefit obligations
| Defined benefit plans

Particuiars
Gratuity
Cormpensated absences

Total

A Gratuity

March 31, 2020

March 31, 2019

Current  Non-current Current Nan-current
18.67 141.28 12.97 94.18
11.66 32.48 14.41 29.84
30.33 173.76 27.38 124.02

The Company provides gratuity for employees in India as per the Payment of Gratuily Act, 1972, The planned assets are managed by Canara HSBC OBC
Life itnsurance. Employees who are in continuous service for a period of 5 years are eligible for gratuily. The amount of gratuity payable on
retirement/termination is the employees last drawn basic salary per month computed proportionately for 15 days satary multiplied for the number of
years of service. For the funded plan, the Company makes contributions to recognized funds in India. The Company does not fully fund the liability and
maintains a target level of funding to be maintained over a period of time based on estimations of expected gratuity payments.

Disclosure of gratuity

The amounts recognized in the Balance sheel and the movements in the net defined benefit obligation aver the year are as follows:

{1} Amount recegnised in the Statement of Profit and Loss i3 as under:
Description
Current service cost
Interest cost
Actuarial loss/{gain} recognised during the year
Amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss*

March 31, 202¢

March 31, 2019

23.51 18.58

8.58 8.48
33.68 20.13
65,77 47.19

‘Included in Employee benefits expense (Refer note 33). Actuarial loss of T 33.68 (31 March 2019: % 20,13 ) is included in other comprehensive income,

(i1} Breakup of actuarial {gain)/loss recognised in other comprehensive income (OCI)
Description
Actuarial (gain)/loss on arising from change in demographic assumption
Actuarial loss/{gain) on arising frem change in financial assumption
Actuarial loss/ (gain) on arising frem experience adjustment
Return on plan assets (excluding interest)
Total actuarial less/{gain) recegnised in OC§

(iif} Movement in the liability recognised in the balance sheet is as under:
Description
Present value of defined benefit cbligation as at the start of the year
Current service cost
Interest cost
Actuarial loss/(gain) recognised during the vear
Benefits paid
Past service cost
Present value of defined benefit obligation as at the end of the year

(iv} Change in fair value of assets:
Description
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year
Interest income on plan assets
Company Contributions
Actuarial {Losses)/ Gains
Benefits paid
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year

March 31, 2020

March 31, 201¢

{1.23) (1.723
48.69 1.31
(9.28) 20,54
{4.50) -
33.68 20.13

March 31, 2020

March 31, 2019

145.4% 105,06
23.51 18,58
11.5% 8.48
38.18 20.13
(7.32) (6.76)

211,37 145.49

March 31, 2020

March 31, 2019

38.34 45.10
2.93 3.51
12,97 .
4.50 (3.51)
{7.32) {6.76)

51,42 38.34




DAAWAT FOODS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
{All armnounts are in ¥ takhs unless otherwise stated)

{v) Actuariatl assumptions

Description March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Discount rate 6.65% 7.63%
Retirement age 58 years %8 years
Employee turnover:

- Upto 30 years 10.12% 9.00%
- From 31 to 44 years 10.12% 9.00%
- Above 44 years 10.12% 9.00%
Rate of increase in compensation 7.85% 5.00%

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial vatuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as
supply and demand in the employment market.

{vi) Sensitivity analysis for gratuity Hability

Description Farch 31, 2020 tharch 31, 2019
Impact of the change in discount rate
Present vaiue of obligation al the end of the year 211.37 145.49
- Impact due toincrease of 1% (13.74} (7.24)
- fmpact due to decrease of 1% 15.59 8.85
Impact of the change in salary increase
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 211,37 145.49
- impact due o increase of 1% 14.4% 7.57
- impact due to decrease of 1% (13.49) (6.01)

The above sensitivity analysis are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur and
changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions
the same method (present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit methed at the end of the reporting period} has
been applied which was applied while calculating the defined benefit obligation liability recognised in the balance sheet.

The methods and typas of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to prior period.

(vH) Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation (undiscounted)

Description March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Within next 12 months 19.28 13,46
Between 2-5 years 93.03 63.41
Between 6-10 years 92.%1 61.17

(viif) The net liability of defined benefit obligation is as under:

(ix}

e

s

Description March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Present value of defined benefit obligation 211.37 145.49
Fair value of plan assets 51.42 38.34
Deficit 159.95 107,15
Description March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Expected contribution to the fund in the next year 19.28 13.46

Compensated absences

The earned leave liability arises on retirement, withdrawal, resignation and death-in-service of an empleyee. The actuary has used projected unit cost (PUC)
actuarial method to assess the plan's liabilities of employees,

Actuarial assumptions

Description March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Discount rate 6.65% 7.63%
Withdrawal rate 10.12% 9.00%
Future basic salary increase 7.85% 5.00%
Notes:

The discount rate js based on the prevailing market yields of Indian Government securities as at the balance sheet date for the estimated term of obligations.

The estimates of ‘Future basic salary increase' takes into account the inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant facters on long term basis.

Defined Contribution Plans

Provident Fund and ES! Fund

Contribution made towards provident fund by the Company during the year is T 67.91 {March 31, 2019: T 58.45).
Contribution made towards ES1 fund hy the Company during the year is T 11.32 (March 31, 2019: T 16.61).
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42 Far vate disclosures

I Fwaacial mstruments by category
Sarvicutars March 31, 2019 .
tised cost ,,[ L BTRL Fvocl 7 Amertised st
Fnancial assets
tavenrngent’ Fiova .
oy dejnsils - 169,15 . YO 57
receivables - 12,879.92 : : 123618
+asts arud cash equivalents - 4.1 - . 21135
athey bank batances . 460,65 . 1182
thrrwative instrament in desienaled hodge
Letanoship ’ ’ Jibah
Othed Tinanctal assels . 13,652.55 . . 14,140.88
Totai 7314 o 27,316.61 135,45 - 21,9715.€5
Financlab Babibties T Trmmmmmm———m—
IR TIT- - 0,878 . . ) 3064390
Trade payalile - . 749930 6,632,492
Lewreative bstoomient in desipoated hedge . -
“olationship o453
Gl financiad tiabiities - 1o . § o = »
Tota: 224,53 AT e 47,057.08
It i eguity instrument of slllls.!l“alyll;;'ljt’il'u accounted at cost In accarfan: o with nd A% 27, therefore not within scope of Ind AS 109, hence, not inclided here.
ki) Fair values hierarchy

Financaal assets and financial abilithes measured ab Lair value in the balance sheoy are categorised into Uiree tevels of fair value hisrarchy, The three levels are defined based
on U olscivability of significant fnputs to the measurcment, as fotlows:

tevel 1 Quoted prices junadjusted) o active markets for financial instruments.

tevsd 2 The fair value of Anancial instruments that e now traded in an active market 1s dedermined using valaation techatques which maximize The use of observable manet
rata and roby as little ac possible on enlily specific otirates,

Level 3 If one or more of the significant fnputs is not based on observable market data. the instroment s included in levet 3,

Fasr vatue of Instruments measured at FYTPL:

Particutars Level Maich 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Financial assets o

Investment Level 7 AL

Detivative asset Level 2 . 315.4%
Financial labilitles

Derivative liabiliy Level 2 274.53

Valuation process and technigque used to determine falr value

Derivative financial assets/lfabititfes: The Company enters fata derivalive linancial instruments with various counterparties, principaily financial institutions with investment
grade credit ratings. Foreign exchange forward contracts are valued using valuation techniques, which employs the use of market obseivable fnputs. The most frequently
applicd waluation technigues include forward pricing medels, wsing prosent value caicolations. The models incorporate various inputs including the credit quatity of
counterparties, foreign sxchange spot and forward rates etc.

{ill} Fair value of Instruments measured at amortised cost
Fair value of instruments meastred at amordised cost for which lair vabue is disclesed is as follows;
The management assessed that security deposits, loan to employees and retated party. other financial assets, cash and cash equivalent, other bank balance, trade receivables
and atiwr financial Uabililies approximate their canying amounts largely due 1o the short-term maturities of these instrumonts. The fair valoe of the financial asels and
liabalitaes is inctuded at e amount at which the insbuient could be exclianged by a current transaction belween willing parties, ather Unan in a forced or flquidation sale.

The fair values of toans, secarily deposits, borrowings and other financial essets and ifabilitics are constdered to be the same as thelr carrying values, as there Is an immaterial
change in the lending rates,

Particulars Leval Mareh 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Carrying value Falr value LCarrylng vaiue Fair vaiue
Financial assets
Secuwrity deposit Level ] 169.3% 169.35 169,37 169,37
Loan to related paity Level 1 . B 100.00 100.00
Loan to employees iloveld 70.50 70,50 59,13 49.313
Other financtal assels tevel 3 26,976.76 26,976.76 21,586.95 #1,586.95
Total financlal assets 27,246,861 27,296.61 21,915.65 21,915.85
Financfal llabititles
Borrowings Level 3 30,815.78 30,815.78 19,623.90 19,633.90
Quher financiat liabilities Levet 3 8,417.23 8,417.23 7,423.18 7,423.18

Total financial Nabflitles 39,2334 39,233.01 47,057.08 47,057.08
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DAAWAT FOODS LIMITED

rates to the financial statements for the year ended March 3t, 2020

All Aments

Fipancial risk ranagement

Risk management framework

e Lan Lakie stens gthe s -

staledd

The Company's acUivities expose 1L to market sk, Biguidily 1isk asd eredin risk. This note exptains the sources of 1k which the entiy i exposet e and by the enlity ianages
the Fisk and the related Smpact s the financial statements

Exposure arising (rom

Measurement

Cradit risk

Qicpuidivy rish

Cash and cash cquivalents, teade
receivables, Mnancial assets measured
at amonised cost

Bofrewings and sther babitities

Apeing analysis

Rolting cash flow forecasts

“.Managcmcl;t. B

Bank depusity diversification of assel
hase, crecht umits and collateral

Availabitity <t commitied credit bines and

butroveinm e Hities
Foreard ot and hedging, i luding

PCFC loans

Market 1k

foreign exchange

Recognised linancial assets and
Habilities not denoninated . indian
rupee {INR]

Cash flow {orecasting

1as Ledne awbiomins

Regotiation o Lerms Uat reftecl the
market Tac

Market sl - mterest rate Long-tecmn bolrowangs at vatiable rates [Sensitivity analysis

Market sk - Campany piesenily does nol make any
investments m equily shares, except for
enthties where il exercises contrat of

signilicant influence

securily price Investments 1y equity secvities Sensitivity anabysic

The Company's risk management is carried out by a central breastry departinent iof the Group) under pilicies approved by the Board of directors, The Board of director
provides written grinciples for overall visk management, as widi a3 policies covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate ik, credit risk and investment
of excess liquidity,

Credit risk
f.redit rish arises from cash and cash equivatents and deposits with banke and financial instititions ag well as crodil exposures to customers inclucdiog ovtstanding receivables,

3) Credit risk managemnent

The Company assesses and maaages credit risk based oninteraal credit rating system, continuousty monitoring defautts of customers and stlier coumterpartivs, identified either
individually ¢1 by the company, and incorprates this information ime its credit risk controls, ternat credit cating is performed for each class af financial instraments with
different characteritics. The Campany assipns e following credit ratings to each class of financial assets based on the assumptions, INputs and factors specific 16 the class of
financial assets.

Al Low

B Meditm

1 figh

Credit rating Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Al Low Loans 310.35 358,37
Cash and cash equivalents 5411 23135
Other bank balances 460.68 137.87
Qther financial assets 13,511.55 13,961.44
Trade receivables 12,879.92 7,236.18

€. Medium i Trade recefvables 2844 i(h44

Cash and cash eqivelents and bank depasits
Credit risk retated to cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits is managed by enly accepting highly rated banks and diversilfying bank deposits and accounts In differemt
Lanks.,

Trade receivables

The Compary closely monitors the oredit-wortiness of te deblors through inlernal systems that are confinured to define credit Limits of customers, theseby, limiting the
credit risk to pre-calcalated amounts, The Company assesses increase In credit risk on an ongoing basis for amounts receivable that become past due and delault is considered
1o have occurred when amaunts recebvable become past due omne year.

Other finuncial assels meosured ot amortised cost

Other financial assels measured sl amortised cost includes toans and advances to employees, security deposits and others. Lredit risk retated to these othier financial assets Iy
managed by monitoring the recaverabitity of such amounts continuously, while at the same time internal control system i place ensure the amounts are within defined limits,

{This space has been intentionally left blank)
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b} Expected crodit losses

Expected credit losses for {inancial asseis other than trade ceceivables

The Company provides for expectod credit bosses on loans and advances other thae trade recomeables by assession individual financial instrumants for expectation of any coediv
1osses, Since, the Company deals with oty high-rated baaks and {inaacial mstittions, credht sk in respect af cash and cash equivalonts. ather bapk balances and bank
depasits is evatiated as very low, Inespect of other financiat assets, ciedit risk s cvatuated based on Company’s knowledge of the credit warthiness ol thase parties and loss
altowance i8 measured as lifelime cxpected credit losses. The Company does not have any sxpected loss based impairment recognised on b sy considering sheir low
credit risk nature, though mearred Wy provistors are disclosed undes each sub-cidegory of sach Binaneial assets.

2 March 31
" Gross car rying #xpected Carryfné amount Gross carrying Expected |';mi;-.1't)i|ity C';{l"‘r‘yir‘{é'.‘a&;ﬂhn'{”
amaunt probability of net of impairment amount of default net of impairment
default provision provisien

Cash and cash equivalents i 5411 Soaonl 0 san 711.35 B 711,35
Otk bank batances 460,68 440.68 137.87 Rt 13.e?
Loans 310,35 0.3 34837 00 394,37
) 13,511.55 R 5451155 13,981.13 BRLLIRE

Experted credit loss for trade receivables underv simplified approach

The Carpany recosnises {ifetime expected credil tosses on Lrade receivables using a simplified approach, wheren Company bas defined porcentage of provision by analysing
historfeat trend of detault relevant to cach business segment based on Lhe criteria defined abave and such provision percentage determined have been Considered to recognise
tife time expected credd losses on trade receivables {olher than twse where delaalt criteria aie met). Trade receivablos are subjoct to credit liails, controls and approvats
pracesses. The majority of receivables are from related partles where the Company bas greater visiidlity of creditworthiness. Further based on the historical experience, the
risk of default in case of trade receivabiles 1 low.

Particulars 0-§ Year i-3 Year
Ay at March 31, 2620
Trade receivabiles 18799 a4
Bofalt rale 000
Funioe tod srodil Lo a4
As at Mach 31, 2099
Trade receivables 608 10.44
Default rate 104, O
Frpedted credit loss 1044
Reconciliation of loss allowanue on frade receivables Arnotint

Loss ailowance on Apri 6%, 2018 10.44
AddfLess): Changes in loss allowances B
Loss allowance on March 31, 2019
Add/ tless): Changes in loss altowances
Eoss allowance on March 31, 2020

Liquidity risk

Prudent Uquidity risk management implies maintaintyg sufficient cash and matietable securities and the availability of funding through an adenuate amount of commitied
credit facilities 1o meet ebligations when due. Due to the nature of the business, the Company maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining availability uncler committed
facilities.

Management moniters rolling forecasts of Lhe Compary's liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expecied cash flows. The Company takes inte account
the Houidity of the market. in which Lhe entity operates.

Maturities of financial Habllities
The tables below analyse the Company's financial liabilities into retevant maturily of Company based on their contractual maturities for all nan-derivative financial lia

ies.

The amaunts disclosed in the table are the contractual indiscounted cash {lows. Bafances due within 17 manths equal thedr carrying values as te mpact of discounting i not
significant.

Karch 31, 2020 Less than 1 year 1-3 year More than 3 years Total

Borrowings {excluding interest therenn) 79,302.10 N 1,475,597 30,815,738
“frade payable 7,499.30 - 7,499.30
Other linancial Liabitities 917.93 - R 917.93
Total 37,719.31 YAl 1,475.97 39,233.01
March 31, 2019 Less than 1 year 1-3 year More than 3 years ‘Tatal

Borrowings {excluding interest thereon) 36,301,238 1,332.52 2,000.00 39,633.90
Trade payable £6,032.92 - . 6,632.92
Ocher financial tabilities 790.26 790.26

Total 43,724,536 1,332.52 2,000.00 47,057.08
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varket risk

sarket vk ds the rish oat 2 fadwes e arked orces

Foreign currency 1isk

Fomicial e

sy fen Thye

eded Maiuh iy

ratent

ded)

slicd” W foreign exchanee ralos, INGerest fates armk esflely gy
MANAREIReN 1L to mar e and control markel risk oxpotures within seceotable parametars while optinusing

ikt

e sl Conppay s meome or the vawe 0f sts eddings 3 financial wstaanents, The objectve of market risl

The Company is expose 1 Lo foreign exchange tsi: arsing from foreign curvency Lransaclions, primarily swath ospect to the U5 Dotlas and Coos, Tereign exchange risk arnses from futuee cammescial bamsactions smd recepused assety and
linbilities denehsinated 0 a cueney that s not the company’s functional cirrency. The tisk is measiwed tiroueh o Tarecast of bighly probable fereien currency cash llovs The obijective of the hedges iy to minimise the volatility af the INR

cazh {lu

The Company’s poticy i to hedige ali matenat lurewg cachange risk assocated with highty probable fors
Latapany uses combination of presshipment credi i foreiga currency (PCFCY and Torward contracts ider
Torward contracts ant crange i spot nf UGS 1 Dedee exposure 10 FOreigr currency rislk on highty jeots

EXposUTE Lo GUITency isk.

of nghly profbable farecat Lransactions

The Company's exposure 4 ioresgn cutency sisk at The end ot the reporing period expressed are a5 foflois

Financial asset!
Trade receivables
EURG
Ush
G

Financial tabrilities
Trade payables
CURE
ek

Preshipment crodit
sk

Bill discounted
ush

Het exposure:
EURO
ush
GEP

o 150 sdles

In foreign currency

In INR

March 31, 2020

March 31, 2019

March 31, 2020

#arch 3%, 2019

13.83
18.36
14

Q.0%
0,50

(R

0450

23,78
{(137.10)
1.14

8.25
2916
1.29

o.er
4.03

7184

1,979,490
1,389.34
106,70

4.10
AT 86

11,686.29

Ry

§,975.74
{10,372.56)
106.70

64110
2017 45
11710

G148
275 48

ERISER:]

63594
(3,369.15)
ELALN

The foliowing cxchange rales have been appicd for measurement of balances denoininated in fore

N currency

Particulars

GBP

sl sates transa Leoas denomimaten i (oreh cumencies, The Company s pelicy s 10 heedge the enk o hanges in fersign currency. The
alive INSLIUMENts) ke bedee sty cxpasure in fareign currency risk, The Company designate Both chanee nospat and forsard element of

Year ond spot rate

March 31, 2020

March 31, 2019

33.09
75.64
9355

1.0
60.17
90.48

The Qutstanding forward exchange contracts as aw the end of the year entered by the Company for the purpose of heduing its loreign currency exposwes are as follows:

As at March 31, 2020

currency March 31, 7020 March 31, 2019
UsD 3,404.70 7,366.74
euro 41T -
GBP 18710 .
Total T 04 54 7,366.74

{a} Disclosure of affocls of hedge accounting on financial position

Type of hedge and risks

Naminal value

Carrylng amount of hedging instrument

Cash {low hedge
Foreign currency risk

usk
EURD
GBP

{PCFCS)

{f} A - Forelen exchange forward contracts -
{1} 8 - Foreign exchange forwatd contracts -
(1) C - Faredgn exchange forvward contracts -

{1} Pre-shipment credit in foreign currency

Assels Liabiities Assets
3,404.70
A4, 112,71
187.10
11.686.29

LiabHities

Maturity dates

Hedge ratie

Average strike
price

Change In fair
value of hedging
instrument
Asset/(Liabilitles)

Change In the value of
hedged ftem used a3 the
binis far tecognising
hedge effactiveneys

144,98

81.45

536,48

30 June 2020 -
26 February 2021

29 Qctober 2020
30 Apeil 2020 -

08 March 2021

06 June 2020 -

27 September 2020

USD: Rs.74.47

EURC: Rs.82.97

GBP: Rs. 96,76

UsD: Rs.72.%%

114498}

{81.45)

1.90

1536.48)

As at March 31, 2019

144,65
52 39

(2.0

516,00

Type of hedge and risks

Nominal value

Carrying amount of hedging instrument

Maturity dates

Hedge ratio

Average strike

Change in fair
value of hedging

Change In the value of
hedged item vsed as the

price instrument basks for recognlsing
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities Asset/(Liabitities) hedge effectivencys
Cash flow hedge
Foreign currency 1sk
{i) A - Foreign exchanie forward contracis 30 April, 2019 -
700,74 1545 January 31,2020 11 UsD: Rs.72.83 319,45 {288,206}
{#i) Pre-shipment credil in foreion currency 30 4nit, 2019 -
{PCFCs) 5,107.87 5,107.82 JSeptember 30,2019 1:1 st Rs, 71,50 98.38 {97.76)




th} Disciosiie of effecty of hedge accouaiig on financial perfurmance

f__c_)!_ _\_r]_g yrar __L'-Qgil.‘d March 21, 2020_

Type of hedge and risks

Cash flow hedge

Forew crerency vish
: Foreign exchange forward contrly
1y Peiz-shipment credit in foreigs cirrency
Higs

For the year ended March 3%, 201%

Type of hedge and risks

Cash flow hedge

Foreign currency risk
24 Foreigan exchange farwand contracty
ilip Pre-shipment eredit in fereign carrency
PLFCs)

Change i the value of
tnstrument in other camprehens
ame

EER:D]

v

sikpe inefioct
+ statement of prafit or loss
Gain/{Lossy

149 L6)

1983

Ao reclas:

<ash flow
At or toss

sifind
hedging (eserve to

ne item affected in stateme
prafit and loss because of
reclassification and hedge

£02.88

tr26. 4y

Revernme and ather income

Revente anid other mcorne

Change in the value of hedging
fnstrument in other comprehensive
income

1" Fiedge ineffectiveness recognised in |

statomaent of profit or toss
Gainf(L.oys)

Amount rectassified from cash llow
hedging reserve to orofit o lass

Line ilem afiected in statement of
profit and foss because of
reeiassilication and hedge

FRITN:Y]

CERN]

(317.00)

(970.37)

Revemue 2 other incorme

Revenue and other income

The Corpany's hedeing policy onby aliows Ton effeciive hedge retationships 1o e cstablbied. Hedge efectivencss 15 determined at the nceplion of the nedge relationship, and through perindic prospective effectiveness asiessiment 1o

ersure Wat an econemic relationship exists between the hedged tem and Dedying astrument.

Fou foreard conlracts, hiedee effectiven

prabable forecast sales.

For PUIECs, hedge elfectiveness fs moasured by comparing change i Lhe discommted spot restatement of iypothetical deavative with change in the value of ac
in hedges of Toreign currency forecast sales ineffectiveness mafly arises becagee of Change in timing of hedaed item from that of the hedging instrument aml < ast af hedging. The inefiectiveness, arised in ibe Yedges have bees disclosed in

abawn tahle,
i} Havemenls in cash flow hedging reseive

Particulars

As at Aprit 01, 2019

Adel Changes in fair value of Toiward contracts
Add Changes s fair value of forward PCFCs
fes: Armaunl reclassified to profit or tow

Less Tax impact Lo above {net)

Change during the year ended March 31, 2020
Ay at March 21, 2020

Particuiars

As ak April 01, 2078

ald: Changes fn fair value of forward cmtiacts
Add: Changes i falr value of farward PCFCs
Less: Amaeunt reclassified Lo profit or toss

{ess Tax impact to above {net)

Change during the year ended March 31, 2020
As at March 31, 2019

Amount
749,93
(49789}
1324.08}

123.86}

313.33

Arount

{2306,62)
{872.01)
1,487.37

A medasared using hypothetical denvatea method, Ineffectiveness is meisured by comparing the change in the far calue of the actual desivative 1e, forward contracts desngnated as the hedging
instéenment and the change in e Tar valye of a hypothetical derivative represent g the hedaed item Le. highly probable farecast sales Hypothetical derivai—o matches the critical terms Le maturty date. curreney and amount of highly

| fiedging iwtrument +.e. FCFG
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i . Currency ] “_‘S‘lr'engl!:cn.l ] T sengthen Weaken e Weaken

I Effect an profif after tax £ffect on other companents of equity Effect on other compenents of equity

i Galn/{Los Galn/(Loss) Gain/{Loss] Gainf(loss)

i “March 31, 2020 | maich 31, 2019 | March 31, 2020 | March 31,2015 | March 31, 2070 ‘ warch 312019 1 Warch 31,7020 | #arch 34, 2019

I‘ Wan vange rale by 15 JEVEG narmt T TRy weo | - W R 119,80 ]

Georpat vty af Charg m exfange rate by 10 ush [AERILT] HYR.64 76.81 RN 1109 1109 64} 176,81y

w1y ol - Le by GEP 0161 RED) o L or 154

L] Inteiest rate risk
i} Liabilities

The Commpany®s ol s o adimmse interest rate cash flow risk exposures onolong Berns be g A8 @t March 31, 2020, the Company s exposed Lo changes inrearket soeoest gates iknogh bank borroweings at varlable interest 1ales, The

Lompany s vestments 1 Need deposits pay intorest at fixed interest rates

Interest rate rish ¢
Betovs 1 the overalt <xpostae of the Company to ledest rate risk:

ABNTE

[Partic ) ] o ) o #March 31, 2020 | March 31, 2019

Yartahte rate borroy ag 29,302.10 37,554.92
Fired rate borrowing . - £,513.68 2.078.98
T be i 9}815.78 39,633.90

Sensitiviiy
Profit or loss i soaciiive b bigher Hower interact pxpeise from Dorrowings as 4 result of changes ininterest rates. Other components of eguity change an a reseit of an nerease/docraase i the fair value of the cash flow hedges related to
borrey ings, )

“TEffect on profit after tax

Partieulars o March 31, 2020 | March 31, 2013
Variable rate botrsvang T T s s -
et t eloe o i e o8 50 Dasis paists® {109.64) (122.16)
Lnpact dus 1o dersoase of 0 basis points” 109.64 122,16

* Helding all other variables constant

Assets
The Company's fixedl deprosits are cartied at amortised cosL and are fixed rate deposits They e therefore not subject (o interest rate risk as defined in tnd A% 107, since aeither the carrying amount nor the futore cash flows will fluctuate
Dbecauwe of a chanps i market interest rates,

c) Price risk Exposure
e Company daey sl have any significant investiients in equity instruments which cieate 2 exposure to rice risk.

44 Capital managerient

a) Tiw Company’s capital management abjectives are
- to ensure the Company's abilily to conlinue as a going concern
w provide an adequate return to shareholders
The Company monitars capital on the basts of the carrying amaunt of equity less cash and cash equivalents as presented on the face of batance sheet,
Management assesses the Company's capital requirements in erder Lo maintain an efticient sverall (inancing structure while avoiding excessive leverage, This takes inta account the subordination levels of the Company's various classes al
debt, The Company manages the capftal structure and makes adjustments 1o 4t in the Hght of changes in economfe conditions and the risk characreristics of the underlying assets. In erder Lo maintain or adjust Lhe capitat structure, the
Caompany may pdjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital ta sharehnlibees . Bsie new shares, or sell assets te reduce debl
Tewe Company's adjosled net dett to eyuity ratio as at the year end was as follaws.
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Tatal borrawings 30,815.78 39.633.90
Less: Cash and cash equivalents 54,11 211,33
Net debt 30,761.67 39,422.55
Total equity 27,160.43 22,343.33
Adjusted net debt o adjustod equily ratio i.13 1.76
I} toan covenants

Under the ternis of major borrowing facitities, the Company is required to comply wilh the following covemants:
the interest coverage ratie must be more than 2.43 times;
the dedt service coverage ratio musl be more than 5,48 times;
- the adjustable tangible net worth of the Company must be mare than % 29,800,
T Company has complied with these covenants throughout the reporting perind.

i This space fias been intentionally left blamk)




DAAWAT FOODS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
{Ali amounts are in ¥ lakhs unless otherwise stated)

45 Related party disclosures
The Company’s related party transactions and outstanding batances are with its holding Company, subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries, associates, key
management and others as described below,

A. Relationships
a) Holding Company
LT Foods Limited

b) Subsidiaries
LT Agri Services Private Limited
Raghuvesh Power Projects Limited (titl September 5, 2018)
Fresco Fruit & Nuts Private Limited

¢) Fellow subsidiaries {with whom transactions have taken place during the current or previous year)
Nature Bio Foods Limited
LT Foods Americas Inc. (Formerly known as Kusha, inc,)
Raghuvesh Feads & Infrastructure Limited (titl January 30, 2019
Daawal Kameda India Private Limited
Deva Singh Sham Singh Exports Pvt, Ltd,
LT Foods Eurcpe B.V.
LT International Limited
I.T Foods Middle Fast DMCC
Usiiversal Traders Inc.
Raghunath Agro industries Private Limited

d} Associates of holding company
Raghuvesh Agri Foods Private Limited
Raghuvesh Warehousing Private Limited
Raghuvesh Infrastructure Private limited

B. Key management personnel and Directors

= Key Managemen! Personnel

Name Designation
Ashwani Kumar Arora Director

Vijay Kumar Arora Director

Ashok Kumar Arora Managing Director
Surinder Kumar Arora Managing Director
Parmod Kumar Whole time director
Ranju Arora Director

Rajinder Wadhawan Chief Financiai Officer
Pramod Bhagat Directer

Surender Kumar Tuteja Director

Abhiram Seth Nominee Director
Suneet Gupta Nominee Director
Anu Pushkarna Company Secretary

Entities in which Key Management Personnel and their relatives have significant infiuence (with whom transactions has taken ptace during
the current year and/or previous year}

S.K. Trading Company

Super Texfab Private Limited

Shri Balaji Trading Company

Oswal Woollen Mills Limited

Raam Multisolvexindia Pvt. Ltd (till March 29, 2019)




DAAWAT FOODS LEIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(All amaunts are in T lakhs uniess otherwise stated}

Details of transactions with the above related parties in the ordinary course of business
Transactions with the holding company

Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
lssue of preference shares - 2,000.00
Interest expense 478.00 371.05
Corporate guarantee availed charges 246.16 212.67
Business support services 226,98 :
Insurance expense 29.32 25.82
Testing and inspection charges 17.73 :
Purchases 5,054.56 2,725.45
Purchase of Stock in trade 7,009.08
Reimbursement of expenses 66.02 -
Advance received 4,865.61 1,222.84
Purchases of property, plant and equipment 48.06 2119
Sales 35,070.29 29,213.71
Sales of property, plant and equipment - 37.04
Corporate guarantee availed 22,378.04 21,938.48
Balance at the year end {net receivable/ (net payable)}

As at As at

Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 201¢%
Balance at the year end {net receivable/ {net payable)} (6,088.45) {1,222.84)

(This space has been intentionally left blank)




DAAWAT FOODS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(All amounts are in T lakhs uniess otherwise stated)

Transactions with subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries and associate companies.

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2020

Year ended
March 31, 2019

Sales

L7 Foods america inc. 32,992.98 31,007.15

LT Foods Middle East DMCC 1,547.39 1,372.24

Nature Bio Foods Limited 1,932.73

Daawat Kameda India Private Limited 0,32

Deva Singh Sham Singh Exports Pvt,Ltd, 751.12 -

LT Foods Europe B.Y. 4,329.69 663.52

Raghunath Agro Industries Private Limited 10,819.89 10,251.10
Sales return

Universal Traders Inc. i7.97
Purchase of Stock in trade

Nature Bio Foods Limited 12.89 21.91

Raghunath Agro Industries Private Limited 381.64
Rental income

Nature Bio Foods Limited 16.50 15.00
Rental expense

Raghuvesh Agri Foods Private Limited 18.00 18.0C
Processing charges income

Nature Bio Foods Limited 316.37 413.98
Power and fuel expenses

Mature Bio Foods Limited 158,41 142,69
Income from fleet lease

Mature Bio Foods Limited 12.33 18,24
Reimbursement of Expenses

Nature Bio Foods Limited 2.32
Advances from customers

LT Foods America Inc, 1,210.92

Natuire Bio Foods Limited 5.56 232.38

Raghunath Agro Industries Private Limited 2,321.02
Advances to supplier

Raghuvesh Agri Foods Private Limited 9.67
Loan given

Fresco Fruit & Nuts Private Limited 100.00
Payment made on behalf of

Fresco Fruit & Nuts Private Limited 1.00
Provision for diminution in value of investment

Fresco Fruit & Nuts Private Limited 101,00

Raghuvesh Power Projects Limited 2.55

(This space has been intentionally left blank)



DAAWAT FOODS LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

{All amounts are in T lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

Balance at the vear end {net receivable/ (net payable)}
Fresco Fruit & Nuts Private Limited (Censidered doubtful)

Raghunath Agro Industries Private Limited
LT Foods America Inc.,

Universal Traders Inc.

LT Foods Middle East DMCC

Nature Bio Foods Limited

Deva Singh Sham Singh Exports Pyt Limited
Daawat Kameda india Private Limited

LT International Limited

LT Foods Eurcpe B.V.

Raghuvesh Agri Foods Private Limited
Raghuvesh Warehousing Private Limited

Guarantees given on behalf of
Raghunath Agro Industries Private Limited

As at
March 31, 2020

As at
March 31, 2019

101.00
5,288.07
(6,558.14)
7.10
422.03
(5.56)
457.87
0.32

1,979.90

{8.54)
0.4%

151.96

Transactions with entities over which KMP's and/or their relatives have significant influence or control

Particulars

Sales
S.K. Trading Company
Oswal Woollen Mills Limited

Purchases
S.K. Trading Company
Super Texfab Private Limited

Advance to Supplier
Shri Balaji Trading Company

(This space has been intentionally left blank}

Year ended
March 31, 2020

101.00
(2,321.02)
(5,892.36)

6.49

382.35

(232.38)

0.71

641,10

88.75
(36.34)

209.92

Year ended
March 31, 2019

20.20
302.75

81.70
1,332.25

402.00

200.64

1,142,46
1,408.34

65.57



DAAWAT FOODS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(ALl amounts are in T lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Transactions with key management persennel

Year ended
March 31, 2019

Year ended

Particulars ' March 31, 2020
Remuneration paid

Rajinder Wadhawan 199.21

Pramod Kumar ’ 41.21

Ashok Kumar Arora 207.80

Surinder Kumar Arora 211.21
Loan given

Rajinder Wadhawan . 52.29
Sitting fees

Pramod Bhagat - . 2,45

Surender Kumar Tuteja 1.40

Abhiram Seth . 0.60

Ranju Arora 0.40

99,21
41.21
216,84
211.21

75.00

2.6
3.00
0.20
0.20

Mr. Vijay Kumar Arora, Mr. Ashwani Kumar Arora and Mr, Ashok Kumar Arora, the Directors have given personal guarantees against the working

capital loans availed by the Company.

Mr. Vijay Kumar Arora, Mr. Ashwani Kumar Arora, Mr, Ashok Kumar Arota and Mr, Surinder Kumar Arora, the Directors have given personal

guarantees against the term loans availed by the Company.

As at
March 31, 2019

As at

Particulars . . March 31, 2020
Balance at the year end [net receivable/ (net payable)}}

Super Texfab Private Limited {427.69}

S.K. Trading Company .

Shri Balaji Trading company : 527.02

Oswal Woollan Mills Limited . 11,11

Rajinder Wadhawan ) 127,30

Ashwani Kumar Arora .
Defined benefit obligation for KMP

Gratuity

Rajinder Wadhawan : 7.20

Pramod Kumar

Ashok Kumar Arora

Surinder Kumar Arora 0.08

Compensated absences

Rajinder Wadhawan 1.24

Pramod Kumar 1.00

Ashok Kumar Arora . 6.19

Surinder Kumar Arora 6.36

(This space has been intentionally left blank)

(327.62)
(0.05)
125.02
{5.46)
75.00
(5.28)

4.58
4.03
9.72
0.99

2.36
0.51
9.36
8.76



DAAWAT FOODS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
{All amounts are in T in lakhs unless otherwise stated)

46 Details of [oan, investment made and guarantee given covered under section 186(4) of Companies Act, 2013

As at As at

iy N f the | ste
(i) MName of the Investee March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Investments in equity shares

L1 Agri Services Private Limited 1.00 .00
Fresco Fruit & Muts Private Limited 221.05 221.05
Raghtinath Agro Industries Private Limited 84.15 84,15
Total 306,20 306,20

The investments are made for business purpeses only.

(i1} Mame of the Borrower Rate of Interest As at As at
tarch 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Fresco Fruit & Nuts Private Limited 0% - 100.00
Total - 100.00

The above loan has been given for business purposes only.

(i) Name of Bank Guarantees outstanding, given on behalf of Purpose March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Criental Bank of Commerce  Raghunath Agro Industries Private Limited* Warking capital loan 151.96 209.92

*The above guarantees are given for the purpose of availing working capital loans by the related entity. The same i disclosed to the extent of
the Company's share of holding in Raghunath Agro Industries Private Limited.

(This space has been intentiohally left blank)
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DAAWAT FQODS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(AL amounts are in T lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Deferred government grants
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
At the beginning of the year T 81,69 109.38
l.ess: Released during the year {22.74) (27.69)
Add: Received during the year - -
At the end of the year 58.95 81.69
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Current Non-current Current Non-current
Government grants 18.56 40,39 22.74 58.95ﬁ
Segment reporting

The Company's operations predominantly retate to the business of milling, processing of branded and non-branded basmati rice and manufacturing of
rice food products in the domestic and overseas market . The company has identified its whole-time directors as chief operating decision makers
{CODM) who assess the financial performance and take the strategic decisions for the company. The chief eperating decision makers review the
operations of the Company as one operating segment. Hence, no separate segment information has been furnished herewith.

An analysis of the Company's revenue from sale of rice and other products is as follows:

Particulars

March 31, 2020

March 31, 2019

Amount % Amount %
Rice 87,935.92 88.97% 75,583.28 89.00%
Others 2,309.68 9.42% 7,755.58 9.13%
Other operating revenue 1,392.14 1.01% 1,582.98 1.86%
Total 98,837.74 100,00% 84,921.84 100.00%

maost appropriate:

. Sale of Rice

March 31, 2020

. The Company categorizes its revenue based on preducts sold and further by geographical region, as summarized below, which as per management is

March 31, 2019

Amount % Amount %
India 50,158.29 57.04% 44,717,08 59.16%
United States of America 31,683.38 36.03% 29,641,18 39.22%
Other countries 6,094.25 6.93% 1,225.02 1.62%
Total 87,935,992 100,00% 75,583,28 100,00%

ii, Sale of Other items

March 31, 2020

March 31, 2019

Amount % Amount %
India 7,268.71 78.08% 5,644.49 72.78%
United States of America 1,309.60 14,.07% 1,365.96 17.61%
Other countries 731.37 7.85% 74513 9.61%
Total 9,309.68 100.00% 7,755.58 100.00%

Other operating revenue

India

entity’s revenue:

Particulars

March 31, 2020

March 31, 2019

Amount %

Amount %

1,592.14 100.00%

. There are no nen-current assets located in foreign countries other than domicile country.

March 31, 2020

1,582.98 100.00%

. The Company has significant customers, the extent of reliance incltuding detaits of revenue from customers where sales are greater than 10% of the

March 31, 2019

Amount % Amount %
LT Foods Limited 35,070.29 35.48% 29,213.71 34.40%
LT Foods America (Formerly known as Kusha Inc.} 32,992.98 33.38% 31,007.15 36.51%
Raghunath Agro industries Pyt 10,819.89 10.95% 10,251.10 12.07%




DAAWAT FOODS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(All amounts are in T in lakhs unless otherwise stated)

49 The Company is engaged into the business of manufacturing and selting rice and therefore, its business falls under the category to provide ‘essential
services'. Due to the lock-downs and other restrictions and conditions related to the COVID-19 pandemic situation, the State Government has granted
permission to the Company to run its operations and based on management’s assessment upto the date of approval of this Statement, the Company is
very well equipped with a rabust supply chain network and has no shortage with respect ta raw material, including stock of paddy and rice, to fulfil
the demand from both India and international markets. The Company has implemented risk mitigation strategies for the health and weliness of its
employees/ workers and plant has been operating with all and necessary adherence to the guidelines issued by the respective authorities. Based on
management’s assessment of the impact on Company's operations, financial performance and position as at and for the year ended March 31, 2020, it
has been concluded that there is no impact which is required to be recognized in these financial statements, Accordingly, no adjustments have been
made to these financial statements,

50 The Company has entered into rent agreements as a lessee for warehouses and office premises, which are in the nature of operating lease. The
operating leases are cancellable at the option of both the parties with a notice of one to six months. Rental expense for operating lease for the years
ended March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019 was X 511.64 and T 299.85 respectively, The Company has not executed any non-cancellable operating
leases. The Company has teased some of its premises and fixed assets to third parties under lease agreements that qualify as operating leases. Rental
incame for aperating leases for the years ended March 31, 2020 and March 2019 aggregate to ¥ 16.50 and % 15 respectively, The Company has nat
executed any non-cancellable operating teases.

51 As per the international transfer pricing norms introduced in India with effect from April 1, 2001, the Company is required to use certain specified
metheds in computing arm's length price of international transactions between the associated enterprises and maintain prescribed information and
documents retating to such transactions. The appropriate method to be adopted will depend on the nature of transactions/ class of transactions, class
of associated persens, functions perfarmed and other factors, which have been prescribed. The Company is in the process of conducting a transfer
pricing study for the current financiat period. However, in the opinion of the Management the same would not have a material impact on these
financial statements. Accordingly, these financial statements do not include any adjustments for the transfer pricing implications, if any.

52 There are numerous interpretive issues relating to the Hon’bte Supreme Court (SC) judgement dated February 28, 2019 on provident fund on which the
Company has obtained legat advice specifically on the retrospective applicability of the same. The Company has started recognising such
expenditure/liability on account of enhanced provident fund contributions prospectively. Pending further clarification on the applicability of such
ruling and on basis of the legal opinion so obtained, the management i$ of the view that such ruling is appticable prospectively.

53 Standards issued but not issued d&c Pt

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA™) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards, There is no such notification which would have
been appicable from 01 Aprit 2020

54 Previous year figures
Previous year's figures have been regrouped/ reclassified wherever necessary, to confirm to current year's classification.

For MSKA & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
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